

VET Student Loans (VSL) Student Handbook



Contents

| Offered Courses | About Infinity Institute Australia | 4 |
|--|---|----|
| CHC51015 Diploma of Counselling 11 BSB50420 Diploma of Leadership and Management 15 BSB60420 Advanced Diploma of Leadership and Management 15 Unique Student Identifier (USI) and Commonwealth Higher Education Student Support Number (CHESSN) 24 Student Responsibilities 27 Assessments 28 Mutual Recognition 28 Recognition of Prior Learning/Current Competency 28 Plagiarism 28 Overdue assignments 28 Overdue assignments 28 Determination of Not Yet Competent (NYC) 25 Certificates and Statements of Attainment 25 Enrolment Pack 36 Student eligibility requirements 34 Eligibility Tool 34 Citizenship requirements 34 Evidence needed to confirm Australian citizenship 34 Permanent Humanitarian Visa Holders 34 Qualifying New Zealand citizen 35 Permanent residents or visa holders 35 MyGov 35 Einrolment in an approved course with an approved provider 35 Study at a campus primarily in Australia< | Offered Courses | 7 |
| BSB50420 Diploma of Leadership and Management | CHC52015 Diploma of Community Services | 7 |
| BSB60420 Advanced Diploma of Leadership and Management | CHC51015 Diploma of Counselling | 11 |
| Unique Student Identifier (USI) and Commonwealth Higher Education Student Support Number (CHESSN) | BSB50420 Diploma of Leadership and Management | 15 |
| Student Responsibilities 26 Infinity Institute Responsibilities 27 Assessments 28 Mutual Recognition 28 Recognition of Prior Learning/Current Competency 28 Plagiarism 28 Overdue assignments 28 Determination of Not Yet Competent (NYC) 25 Certificates and Statements of Attainment 25 Enrolment Pack 36 Student eligibility requirements 34 Eligibility Tool 34 Citizenship requirements 34 Evidence needed to confirm Australian citizenship. 34 Permanent Humanitarian Visa Holders 34 Qualifying New Zealand citizen 35 Permanent residents or visa holders 35 HELP balance 35 MyGov 35 Enrolment in an approved course with an approved provider 35 Study at a campus primarily in Australia 35 Academic suitability 35 Unique Student identifier (USI) 36 Required documentation 36 <td>BSB60420 Advanced Diploma of Leadership and Management</td> <td>19</td> | BSB60420 Advanced Diploma of Leadership and Management | 19 |
| Infinity Institute Responsibilities 27 Assessments 28 Mutual Recognition 25 Recognition of Prior Learning/Current Competency 26 Plagiarism 28 Overdue assignments 28 Determination of Not Yet Competent (NYC) 25 Certificates and Statements of Attainment 25 Enrolment Pack 36 Student eligibility requirements 34 Eligibility Tool 34 Citizenship requirements 34 Evidence needed to confirm Australian citizenship 34 Permanent Humanitarian Visa Holders 34 Qualifying New Zealand citizen 34 Permanent residents or visa holders 35 HELP balance 35 MyGov 35 Enrolment in an approved course with an approved provider 35 Study at a campus primarily in Australia 35 Academic suitability 35 Tax File Number (TFN) 36 Unique Student identifier (USI) 36 Required documentation 36 | Unique Student Identifier (USI) and Commonwealth Higher Education Student Support Number (CHESSN) | 24 |
| Assessments | Student Responsibilities | 26 |
| Mutual Recognition | Infinity Institute Responsibilities | 27 |
| Recognition of Prior Learning/Current Competency | Assessments | 28 |
| Plagiarism 28 Overdue assignments 28 Determination of Not Yet Competent (NYC) 25 Certificates and Statements of Attainment 25 Enrolment Pack 36 Student eligibility requirements 34 Eligibility Tool 34 Gitizenship requirements 34 Evidence needed to confirm Australian citizenship 34 Permanent Humanitarian Visa Holders 34 Qualifying New Zealand citizen 34 Permanent residents or visa holders 35 HELP balance 35 MyGov 35 Enrolment in an approved course with an approved provider 35 Study at a campus primarily in Australia 35 Academic suitability 35 Tax File Number (TFN) 36 Unique Student identifier (USI) 36 Required documentation 36 | Mutual Recognition | 28 |
| Overdue assignments 28 Determination of Not Yet Competent (NYC) 25 Certificates and Statements of Attainment 25 Enrolment Pack 36 Student eligibility requirements 34 Eligibility Tool 34 Citizenship requirements 34 Evidence needed to confirm Australian citizenship 34 Permanent Humanitarian Visa Holders 34 Qualifying New Zealand citizen 34 Permanent residents or visa holders 35 HELP balance 35 MyGov 35 Enrolment in an approved course with an approved provider 35 Study at a campus primarily in Australia 35 Academic suitability 35 Tax File Number (TFN) 36 Unique Student identifier (USI) 36 Required documentation 36 | Recognition of Prior Learning/Current Competency | 28 |
| Determination of Not Yet Competent (NYC) | Plagiarism | 28 |
| Certificates and Statements of Attainment | Overdue assignments | 28 |
| Enrolment Pack 36 Student eligibility requirements 34 Eligibility Tool 34 Citizenship requirements 34 Evidence needed to confirm Australian citizenship 34 Permanent Humanitarian Visa Holders 34 Qualifying New Zealand citizen 34 Permanent residents or visa holders 35 HELP balance 35 MyHELPbalance 35 MyGov 35 Enrolment in an approved course with an approved provider 35 Study at a campus primarily in Australia 35 Academic suitability 35 Tax File Number (TFN) 36 Unique Student identifier (USI) 36 Required documentation 36 | Determination of Not Yet Competent (NYC) | 29 |
| Student eligibility requirements | Certificates and Statements of Attainment | 29 |
| Citizenship requirements | | |
| Evidence needed to confirm Australian citizenship | Eligibility Tool | 34 |
| Permanent Humanitarian Visa Holders | Citizenship requirements | 34 |
| Qualifying New Zealand citizen34Permanent residents or visa holders35HELP balance35MyHELPbalance35Enrolment in an approved course with an approved provider35Study at a campus primarily in Australia35Academic suitability35Tax File Number (TFN)36Unique Student identifier (USI)36Required documentation36 | Evidence needed to confirm Australian citizenship | 34 |
| Permanent residents or visa holders | Permanent Humanitarian Visa Holders | 34 |
| HELP balance | Qualifying New Zealand citizen | 34 |
| MyHELPbalance 35 MyGov 35 Enrolment in an approved course with an approved provider 35 Study at a campus primarily in Australia 35 Academic suitability 35 Tax File Number (TFN) 36 Unique Student identifier (USI) 36 Required documentation 36 | Permanent residents or visa holders | 35 |
| MyGov | HELP balance | 35 |
| Enrolment in an approved course with an approved provider | MyHELPbalance | 35 |
| Study at a campus primarily in Australia | • | |
| Academic suitability | | |
| Tax File Number (TFN) | | |
| Unique Student identifier (USI) | • | |
| Required documentation | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | Further information | |
| Policies and Procedure | | |
| Academic Progress and Student At-Risk Policy and Procedure | | |
| Code of Conduct & Practice 62 | | |
| Complaints and Appeals Policy & Procedure | Complaints and Appeals Policy & Procedure | 66 |



| Enrolment Process Policy and Procedure | 70 |
|---|----|
| Fair Treatment and Equal Benefits and Opportunity Policy | |
| Privacy Policy | |
| Records and Information Management Policy & Procedure | |
| Statement of Tuition Assurance for Exempt VET Student Loans (VSL) Providers | |
| Withdrawal and Refund Policy & Procedure | 84 |
| Public Holidays | |



About Infinity Institute Australia

Infinity Institute Australia (Infinity Institute) sets out to do things a little differently. We want you, our students to not only aim for, but achieve, incredible things. Your future is our priority and to ensure that you maximise your potential, we have and will continue to structure our courses in a way that distinguishes them from 'the rest'. This means that upon completion, you will have the best opportunity to flourish in your chosen career. In addition, we set out to ensure that the foundation upon which your education is built at Infinity Institute allows leverage into the future, whether it be for further studies or specialisation in your field of choice.

Our lecturers and tutors are deliberately selected with the highest standards. This allows them to offer our students the highest levels of support in their journey of study. In providing learning support and ongoing assistance that is tailored to their studies our team will facilitate our students in achieving their best.

Critical thinking and inquiry, academic excellence, cultural and gender diversity and ethical behaviour all underpin the values of this institution. Just because we are not a 'big name' organisation, doesn't mean that the qualification you receive at the end of your successful studies carries any less weight.

We propose to challenge mainstream thinking with our model and invite you to join us to do so. Each member of our management, governance and academic team espouses excellence in all aspect of student life. If you want to be the best, come and be part of the team here at Infinity Institute.

VISION

To have an enduring positive impact on society through excellence in education and learning.

MISSION

To provide an educational experience of the highest calibre. To give our students a rich learning experience in a rich learning environment. To ensure our graduates continue to advance in their professional and academic careers. To demonstrate values that positively change the community around us with ever lasting impact.

VALUES

Integrity – expecting and applying the highest personal, professional and ethical standards in all our actions. This will be reflected in transparency and consistency in our conduct and practices.

Fairness – all dealings with and by Infinity Institute will be afforded with fairness as a cornerstone. Treatment of individuals will not be based on any particular attribute, rather will be equal, open and true to the highest ethical standards.

Excellence – every person at Infinity Institute, whether student, staff or board members will demonstrate this quality to ensure that the environment at and outcomes of being associated with, Infinity Institute is beyond reproach.

Accountability –to ourselves and our community. This will be reflected by holding each other to account, striving for optimal impact and relevance through working together and making a positive and valued contribution to the industry, society and community.

Phone: +61 3 8339 0030 E-mail: admin@ii.edu.au



What is the VET Student Loans program?¹

The VET Student Loans program is an Australian Government loan program that helps eligible students enrolled in approved courses at diploma level or above, at approved course providers pay their tuition fees. The loan has income-contingent repayment arrangements, which means you only need to make repayments if you are earning above the minimum repayment threshold. You can make voluntary repayments at any time.

If you are an eligible student, the department may approve your VET Student Loan for an approved course. The department will pay your loan directly to your approved course provider. You will be responsible for any gap amount in the tuition fees, which are not covered by the loan. You will owe a debt to the Australian Government for the loan, which will be managed by the Australian Taxation Office (ATO).

Am I eligible?

To receive a VET Student Loan, you must:

- 1. be an eligible student
- 2. be studying an approved course
- 3. be studying with an approved course provider
- 4. apply to the government using the approved form, which will be managed through your provider, and
- 5. submit Progression Forms to confirm your ongoing engagement with your studies, and continue accessing the loan throughout your course.

To be an eligible student, you must meet ALL of these criteria – further detailed below.

- You are:
 - > an Australian citizen or
 - > a qualifying New Zealand citizen or
 - > a permanent humanitarian visa holder, who is usually resident in Australia.
- Your HELP balance (the amount of your HELP loan limit you have left) is more than \$0. This means you have
 enough HELP loan limit remaining for your proposed studies to be covered by the loan. The HELP loan limit
 is the limit on how much you can borrow. Any borrowing under FEE-HELP, VET FEE-HELP, VET Student
 Loans and, from 1 January 2020, HECS-HELP will count towards your HELP loan limit.
- You are enrolled with an approved course provider in an approved course and have enrolled in accordance with the application requirements.
- You are studying the approved course primarily at a campus in Australia.
- You have been assessed by your approved course provider as academically suited to undertake the approved course on the basis of either:
 - providing your Australian Year 12 Certificate or
 - > providing your International Baccalaureate Diploma Programme (IB) diploma or

VSL Student Handbook RTO Code: 91275 Page 5 of 94

Address: Level 1, 22 Somerton Rd, Somerton VIC 3062



- > providing a copy of a certificate showing you have been awarded a qualification at level 4 or above in the Australian Qualifications Framework (where the language of instruction was English) or at a level in a framework that preceded the AQF and is equivalent to level 4 or above in the AQF or
- is displaying competence at Exit Level 3 in the Australian Core Skills Framework in both reading and numeracy through an approved Language, Literacy and Numeracy test.
- In addition, your approved course provider must reasonably believe you show competence in completing the course.
- You meet the Tax File Number (TFN) requirements.
- You have a Unique Student Identifier (USI) or are otherwise exempt.
- You have given the required documents to your approved course provider and submitted the loan application form by the first census day no less than two business days after enrolling.

To be an approved course, your course must:

- be specified by the VET Student Loans (Courses and Loan Caps) Determination 2016 (the courses and loan caps determination) and
 - > for state-government subsidised students, lead to a qualification of diploma or advanced diploma in the Australian Qualifications Framework or
 - > for full fee-paying / fee for service students, lead to a qualification of diploma, advanced diploma, graduate certificate or graduate diploma in the Australian Qualifications Framework and
- be provided by an approved course provider and
- be delivered by an approved course provider or an entity registered with TEQSA or a body approved by the department to deliver the course.

For more detailed information about VET Student Loans, please visit Department of Education, Skills and Employment website https://www.dewr.gov.au/vet-student-loans/vet-information-students or contact our Student Administration Team.



Offered Courses

CHC52015 Diploma of Community Services

Course Overview

This qualification reflects the roles of community services, case management and social housing workers involved in the managing, co-ordinating and/or delivering of person-centred services to individuals, groups and communities.

At this level, workers have specialised skills in community services and work autonomously under broad directions from senior management. Workers are usually providing direct support to individuals or groups of individuals. Workers may also have responsibility for the supervision of other workers and volunteers and/or case management, program coordination or the development of new business opportunities.

Note that the Statutory & forensic child, youth & family welfare specialisation must be achieved in order to meet the minimum education requirements for child protection and youth justice practice in Victoria. In addition, to meet the minimum education requirements for entry into child protection practice in Victoria, diploma qualifications must be approved by the Australian Community Workers Association (ACWA).

To achieve this qualification, the candidate must compete at least 100 hours of work as detailed in the Assessment Requirements of units of competency.

The course at Infinity Institute Australia has been structured in a way that builds in management and leadership skills as well as the key Community Services components of the course. Completing the course with Infinity Institute Australia will, in our view, place graduates in a position to better compete for more senior roles and transition into management and leadership placing you in a better position in the future, sooner! In our experience, employers are always looking for graduates who can demonstrate that they have additional skills than the 'rest of the crowd' and applications who are a 'cut above'. We have intentionally structured your course to allow you to take full advance of the teaching and full advantage of your potential in this career path.

Course Outline

To be awarded CHC52015 Diploma of Community Services, an applicant must achieve competency in a total of 16 units of competency, comprising of eight (8) core units and eight (8) elective units.

The eight (8) core units are as follows:

- 1. CHCCCS007 Develop and implement service programs
- 2. CHCCOM003 Develop workplace communication strategies
- 3. CHCDEV002 Analyse impacts of sociological factors on clients in community work and services
- 4. CHCDIV003 Manage and promote diversity
- 5. CHCLEG003 Manage legal and ethical compliance
- 6. CHCMGT005 Facilitate workplace debriefing and support processes
- 7. CHCPRP003 Reflect on and improve own professional practice
- 8. HLTWHS004 Manage work health and safety



The eight (8) elective units are as follows:

- 1. HLTAID014 Provide Advanced First Aid
- 2. BSBHRM525 Manage recruitment and onboarding
- 3. BSBPMG535 Manage project information and communication
- 4. BSBLDR522 Manage people performance
- 5. BSBSTR502 Facilitate continuous improvement
- 6. BSBOPS504 Manage business risk
- 7. BSBPEF401 Manage personal health and wellbeing
- 8. BSBTWK502 Manage team effectiveness

Entry Requirements

All applicants must satisfy the Academic Suitability Requirements and complete a Pre-Training Review.

1. Academic Suitability Requirements

To meet the Academic Suitability Requirements, applicant must satisfy one of the following:

- Provide a copy of a Senior Secondary Certificate of Education that has been awarded to the student by an agency or authority of a State or Territory for the student's completion of year 12; or
- Undertake an approved LLN test and demonstrate competence at or above Exit Level 3 in the Australian Core Skills Framework (ACSF) in both reading and numeracy; or
- Provide a copy of a certificate that a qualification at level 4 or above in the Australian Qualifications Framework (AQF) has been awarded to the student by a body registered to award the qualification in the AQF in Australia and the qualification was delivered in English.

2. Pre-Training Review Requirement

The purpose of the PTR is to ensure that the student understands the responsibilities, obligations and rights related to applying for and obtaining a VET Student Loan. Part of the process of the PTR is for the assessor to explain to the student all items contained within the PTR checklist.

A key component being that the student is required to complete an LLN activity to assess their language, literacy and numeracy ability to complete the course (unless otherwise satisfied in accordance with Rule 80 of the VET Student Loans Rules 2016.

The results of the LLN should be discussed with the prospective student during the PTR Interview. The results of assessing a student's competence in reading and numeracy under the procedure must be reported:

- (a) to the student as soon as practicable after the assessment; and
- (b) to the Secretary in the form, manner and by the time requested by the Secretary.



Skills, Knowledge and Experience Recognition

Your existing skills, knowledge and experience can help you get a recognised qualification or competency for some of the Unit of Competency, through an assessment process called Recognition of Prior Learning (RPL). You could be granted competency in full or part of a qualification, saving you valuable time and money, while enhancing your career prospects.

The process could suit you if you have:

- Paid or unpaid work experience
- Prior formal training
- Skills and knowledge gained on the job
- Community Services work experience
- Short course and work-based learning
- Trade skills
- Other life experience

Credit Transfer

Credit transfer is one of several processes for establishing credit. It provides a means for an applicant to gain credit in an AQF qualification on the basis of completed components of another AQF qualification or other formal learning.

The credit transfer process involves:

- Mapping, comparing and evaluating the extent to which the learning outcome, discipline content and
 assessment requirements of the individual components of one qualification are equivalent to the learning
 outcomes, discipline content and assessment requirements of the individual components of another
 qualification, and
- Making a judgment about the credit to be assigned between the matched components of the two qualifications.

Placement Requirement

100 hours of work placement within a community services workplace is mandatory for this qualification. Infinity institute Australia will make every possible effort to assist students in obtaining placement with organisation's or employers. However, it is the ultimate responsibility of students to find their own placement within a registered and approved organisation. Students are encouraged to search for placement from the commencement of their course.

Delivery Mode and Location

Predominately delivery will be Face to Face (classroom based) at Level 1, 22 Somerton Road, Somerton, VIC 3062. However, due to COVID restrictions, some sessions might be delivered through online delivery.

Course Duration

- 12 months Full time
- 24 months Part time



Course Fees

Total course fees for CHC52015 Diploma of Community Services is \$16,788.00. Breakdown of the total course fees is as following:

• Tuition fees: \$16,788.00

Non-tuition fees: \$0

• Total course fees: \$16,788.00

Payment options for Total course fees are as follows:

- Up-front payments for Total course fees
- Initial deposit with payment plan
- VET Student Loans (Only applicable to eligible applicant's, for more information please visit Department of Education, Skills and Employment website https://www.dewr.gov.au/vet-student-loans/vet-information-students or contact Student Administration Team of Infinity Institute Australia.)

Career Pathways

Listed below are some examples of career pathways after successful completion of CHC52015 Diploma of Community Services, but are not limited to:

- Child Welfare Officer
- Residential Carer
- Youth worker
- Community Care Coordinator
- Services Coordinator Community Services
- Social Housing Coordinator
- Community Services Case Manager

Contact Details - Infinity Institute Australia

E-mail: <u>admin@ii.edu.au</u>
 Phone No: +61 3 8339 0030

Address: Level 1, 22 Somerton Road, Somerton, VIC 3062

*Note: CHC52015 Diploma of Community Services delivered by Infinity Institute Australia is a Nationally Recognised Training.





CHC51015 Diploma of Counselling

Course Overview

Diploma of Counselling at Infinity Institute Australia is a journey of self-discovery, providing deep insight into why you think and behave as you do. And when you graduate, you should be well prepared to pursue a career in counselling – employed or self-employed.

Diploma of Counselling at Infinity Institute Australia is extremely applicable to people from all sorts of backgrounds. Whether you are seeking a fresh start in a rewarding profession; or want to acquire counselling skills as an adjunct to you core profession.

Diploma of Counselling reflects the role of counsellors, who work with clients on personal and psychological issues using established counselling modalities. They use communication, micro-counselling and interviewing skills and draw on varied counselling therapies to assist clients. At this level, the counsellor will be working in defined and supported counselling roles in established agencies rather than in independent practice.

Course Outline

To be awarded CHC51015 Diploma of Counselling, an applicant must achieve competency in a total of 17 units of competency, comprising of thirteen (13) core units and four (4) elective units.

The thirteen (13) core units are as follows:

- 1. CHCCSL001 Establish and confirm the counselling relationship
- 2. CHCCSL002 Apply specialist interpersonal and counselling interview skills
- 3. CHCDIV001 Work with diverse people
- 4. CHCDIV002 Promote Aboriginal and/or Torres Strait Islander cultural safety
- 5. CHCLEG001 Work legally and ethically
- 6. CHCCSL003 Facilitate the counselling relationship and process
- 7. CHCCSL004 Research and apply personality and development theories
- 8. CHCCSL005 Apply learning theories in counselling
- 9. CHCCSL006 Select and use counselling therapies
- 10. CHCCSL007 Support counselling clients in decision-making processes
- 11. CHCCSM005 Develop, facilitate and review all aspects of case management
- 12. CHCCCS019 Recognise and respond to crisis situations
- 13. CHCPRP003 Reflect on and improve own professional practice

The four (4) elective units are as follows:

- 1. BSBPEF501 Manage personal and professional development
- 2. BSBCMM412 Lead difficult conversations
- 3. CHCPOL003 Research and apply evidence to practice
- 4. CHCCOM003 Develop workplace communication strategies



Entry Requirements

All applicants must satisfy the Academic Suitability Requirements and complete a Pre-Training Review.

1. Academic Suitability Requirements

To meet the Academic Suitability Requirements, applicant must satisfy one of the following:

- Provide a copy of a Senior Secondary Certificate of Education that has been awarded to the student by an agency or authority of a State or Territory for the student's completion of year 12; or
- Undertake an approved LLN test and demonstrate competence at or above Exit Level 3 in the Australian Core Skills Framework (ACSF) in both reading and numeracy; or
- Provide a copy of a certificate that a qualification at level 4 or above in the Australian Qualifications Framework (AQF) has been awarded to the student by a body registered to award the qualification in the AQF in Australia and the qualification was delivered in English.

2. Pre-Training Review Requirement

The purpose of the PTR is to ensure that the student understands the responsibilities, obligations and rights related to applying for and obtaining a VET Student Loan. Part of the process of the PTR is for the assessor to explain to the student all items contained within the PTR checklist.

A key component being that the student is required to complete an LLN activity to assess their language, literacy and numeracy ability to complete the course (unless otherwise satisfied in accordance with Rule 80 of the VET Student Loans Rules 2016.

The results of the LLN should be discussed with the prospective student during the PTR Interview. The results of assessing a student's competence in reading and numeracy under the procedure must be reported:

- (a) to the student as soon as practicable after the assessment; and
- (b) to the Secretary in the form, manner and by the time requested by the Secretary.

Skills, Knowledge and Experience Recognition

Your existing skills, knowledge and experience can help you get a recognised qualification or competency for some of the Unit of Competency, through an assessment process called Recognition of Prior Learning (RPL). You could be granted competency in full or part of a qualification, saving you valuable time and money, while enhancing your career prospects.

The process could suit you if you have:

- Paid or unpaid work experience
- Prior formal training
- Skills and knowledge gained on the job
- Counselling work experience
- Short course and work-based learning
- Trade skills
- Other life experience

Address: Level 1, 22 Somerton Rd, Somerton VIC 3062



Credit Transfer

Credit transfer is one of several processes for establishing credit. It provides a means for an applicant to gain credit in an AQF qualification on the basis of completed components of another AQF qualification or other formal learning.

The credit transfer process involves:

- Mapping, comparing and evaluating the extent to which the learning outcome, discipline content and
 assessment requirements of the individual components of one qualification are equivalent to the learning
 outcomes, discipline content and assessment requirements of the individual components of another
 qualification, and
- Making a judgment about the credit to be assigned between the matched components of the two
 qualifications.

Delivery Mode and Location

Predominately delivery will be Face to Face (classroom based) at Level 1, 22 Somerton Road, Somerton, VIC 3062. However, due to COVID restrictions, some sessions might be delivered through online delivery.

Course Duration

- 12 months Full time
- 24 months Part time

Course Fees

Total course fees for CHC51015 Diploma of Counselling is \$16,788.00. Breakdown of the total course fees is as following:

- Tuition fees: \$16,788.00
- Non-tuition fees: \$0
- Total course fees: \$16,788.00

Payment options for Total course fees are as follows:

- Up-front payments for Total course fees
- Initial deposit with payment plan
- VET Student Loans (Only applicable to eligible applicant's, for more information please visit Department of Education, Skills and Employment website https://www.dewr.gov.au/vet-student-loans/vet-information-students or contact Student Administration Team of Infinity Institute Australia.)

Career Pathways

Listed below are some examples of career pathways after successful completion of CHC51015 Diploma of Counselling, but are not limited to:

- Counsellor
- Generalist Financial Counsellor
- Rural Financial Counsellor



Contact Details - Infinity Institute Australia

E-mail - <u>admin@ii.edu.au</u> **Phone No** - +61 3 8339 0030

Address - Level 1, 22 Somerton Road, Somerton, VIC 3062

*Note: CHC51015 Diploma of Counselling delivered by Infinity Institute Australia is a Nationally Recognised Training.





BSB50420 Diploma of Leadership and Management

Course Overview

Diploma of Leadership and Management reflects the role of individuals who apply knowledge, practical skills and experience in leadership and management across a range of enterprise and industry contexts.

Individuals at this level display initiative and judgement in planning, organising, implementing and monitoring their own workload and the workload of others. They use communication skills to support individuals and teams to meet organisational or enterprise requirements.

They may plan, design, apply and evaluate solutions to unpredictable problems, and identify, analyse and synthesise information from a variety of sources.

Course Outline

To be awarded BSB50420 Diploma of Leadership and Management, an applicant must achieve competency in a total of 12 units of competency, comprising of six (6) core units and six (6) elective units.

The six (6) core units are as follows:

- 1. BSBCMM511 Communicate with influence
- 2. BSBCRT511 Develop critical thinking in others
- 3. BSBLDR523 Lead and manage effective workplace relationships
- 4. BSBOPS502 Manage business operational plans
- 5. BSBPEF502 Develop and use emotional intelligence
- 6. BSBTWK502 Manage team effectiveness

The six (6) elective units are as follows:

- 1. BSBOPS503 Develop administrative systems
- 2. BSBWHS521 Ensure a safe workplace for a work area
- 3. BSBOPS501 Manage business resources
- 4. BSBOPS504 Manage business risk
- 5. BSBLDR522 Manage people performance
- 6. BSBSTR502 Facilitate continuous improvement



Entry Requirements

All applicants must satisfy the Academic Suitability Requirements and complete a Pre-Training Review.

1. Academic Suitability Requirements

To meet the Academic Suitability Requirements, applicant must satisfy one of the following:

- Provide a copy of a Senior Secondary Certificate of Education that has been awarded to the student by an
 agency or authority of a State or Territory for the student's completion of year 12; or
- Undertake an approved LLN test and demonstrate competence at or above Exit Level 3 in the Australian Core Skills Framework (ACSF) in both reading and numeracy; or
- Provide a copy of a certificate that a qualification at level 4 or above in the Australian Qualifications
 Framework (AQF) has been awarded to the student by a body registered to award the qualification in the
 AQF in Australia and the qualification was delivered in English.

2. Pre-Training Review Requirement

The purpose of the PTR is to ensure that the student understands the responsibilities, obligations and rights related to applying for and obtaining a VET Student Loan. Part of the process of the PTR is for the assessor to explain to the student all items contained within the PTR checklist.

A key component being that the student is required to complete an LLN activity to assess their language, literacy and numeracy ability to complete the course (unless otherwise satisfied in accordance with Rule 80 of the VET Student Loans Rules 2016.

The results of the LLN should be discussed with the prospective student during the PTR Interview. The results of assessing a student's competence in reading and numeracy under the procedure must be reported:

- (a) to the student as soon as practicable after the assessment; and
- (b) to the Secretary in the form, manner and by the time requested by the Secretary.

Skills, Knowledge and Experience Recognition

Your existing skills, knowledge and experience can help you get a recognised qualification or competency for some of the Unit of Competency, through an assessment process called Recognition of Prior Learning (RPL). You could be granted competency in full or part of a qualification, saving you valuable time and money, while enhancing your career prospects.

The process could suit you if you have:

- Paid or unpaid work experience
- Prior formal training
- Skills and knowledge gained on the job
- Counselling work experience
- Short course and work-based learning
- Trade skills
- Other life experience

Address: Level 1, 22 Somerton Rd, Somerton VIC 3062



Credit Transfer

Credit transfer is one of several processes for establishing credit. It provides a means for an applicant to gain credit in an AQF qualification on the basis of completed components of another AQF qualification or other formal learning.

The credit transfer process involves:

- Mapping, comparing and evaluating the extent to which the learning outcome, discipline content and
 assessment requirements of the individual components of one qualification are equivalent to the learning
 outcomes, discipline content and assessment requirements of the individual components of another
 qualification, and
- Making a judgment about the credit to be assigned between the matched components of the two qualifications.

Delivery Mode and Location

Predominately delivery will be Face to Face (classroom based) at Level 1, 22 Somerton Road, Somerton, VIC 3062. However, due to COVID restrictions, some sessions might be delivered through online delivery.

Course Duration

- 12 months Full time
- 24 months Part time

Course Fees

Total course fees for BSB50420 Diploma of Leadership and Management is \$11,191.00. Breakdown of the total course fees is as following:

• Tuition fees: \$11,191.00

Non-tuition fees: \$0.00

Total course fees: \$11,191.00

Payment options for Total course fees are as follows:

- Up-front payments for Total course fees
- Initial deposit with payment plan
- VET Student Loans (Only applicable to eligible applicant's, for more information please visit Department of Education, Skills and Employment website https://www.dewr.gov.au/vet-student-loans/vet-information-students or contact Student Administration Team of Infinity Institute Australia.)



Career Pathways

Listed below are some examples of career pathways after successful completion of BSB50420 Diploma of Leadership and Management, but are not limited to:

- Managers
- Professionals
- Administrative Workers
- Business Development Manager
- Business Services Manager
- Human Resources Manager
- Organisational Development Advisor

Contact Details - Infinity Institute Australia

E-mail - <u>admin@ii.edu.au</u>
Phone No - +61 3 8339 0030

Address - Level 1, 22 Somerton Road, Somerton, VIC 3062

*Note: BSB50420 Diploma of Leadership and Management delivered by Infinity Institute Australia is a Nationally Recognised Training.

NATIONALLY RECOGNISED
TRAINING



BSB60420 Advanced Diploma of Leadership and Management

Course Overview

Advanced Diploma of Leadership and Management reflects the role of individuals who apply specialised knowledge and skills, together with experience in leadership and management, across a range of enterprise and industry contexts.

Individuals at this level use initiative and judgement to plan and implement a range of leadership and management functions, with accountability for personal and team outcomes within broad parameters.

They use cognitive and communication skills to identify, analyse and synthesise information from a variety of sources and transfer their knowledge to others, and creative or conceptual skills to express ideas and perspectives or respond to complex problems.

Course Outline

To be awarded BSB60420 Advanced Diploma of Leadership and Management, an applicant must achieve competency in a total of 10 units of competency, comprising of five (5) core units and five (5) elective units.

The five (5) core units are as follows:

- 1. BSBCRT611 Apply critical thinking for complex problem solving
- 2. BSBLDR601 Lead and manage organisational change
- 3. BSBLDR602 Provide leadership across the organisation
- 4. BSBOPS601 Develop and implement business plans
- 5. BSBSTR601 Manage innovation and continuous improvement

The five (5) elective units are as follows:

- 1. BSBHRM614 Contribute to strategic workforce planning
- 2. BSBPMG633 Provide leadership for the program
- 3. BSBSTR602 Develop organisational strategies
- 4. BSBSUS601 Lead corporate social responsibility
- 5. BSBHRM613 Contribute to the development of learning and development strategies

Address: Level 1, 22 Somerton Rd, Somerton VIC 3062



Entry Requirements

Entry to this qualification is limited to those who:

- Have completed a Diploma or Advanced Diploma from the BSB Training Package (current or superseded equivalent versions). or
- Have two years equivalent full-time relevant workplace experience in an operational or leadership role in an
 enterprise.

Applicant must also satisfy the Academic Suitability Requirements and complete a Pre-Training Review.

1. Academic Suitability Requirements

To meet the Academic Suitability Requirements, applicant must satisfy one of the following:

- Provide a copy of a Senior Secondary Certificate of Education that has been awarded to the student by an agency or authority of a State or Territory for the student's completion of year 12; or
- Undertake an approved LLN test and demonstrate competence at or above Exit Level 4 in the Australian Core Skills Framework (ACSF) in both reading and numeracy; or
- Provide a copy of a certificate that a qualification at level 5 or above in the Australian Qualifications
 Framework (AQF) has been awarded to the student by a body registered to award the qualification in the
 AQF in Australia and the qualification was delivered in English.

2. Pre-Training Review Requirement

The purpose of the PTR is to ensure that the student understands the responsibilities, obligations and rights related to applying for and obtaining a VET Student Loan. Part of the process of the PTR is for the assessor to explain to the student all items contained within the PTR checklist.

A key component being that the student is required to complete an LLN activity to assess their language, literacy and numeracy ability to complete the course (unless otherwise satisfied in accordance with Rule 80 of the VET Student Loans Rules 2016.

The results of the LLN should be discussed with the prospective student during the PTR Interview. The results of assessing a student's competence in reading and numeracy under the procedure must be reported:

- (a) to the student as soon as practicable after the assessment; and
- (b) to the Secretary in the form, manner and by the time requested by the Secretary.

Skills, Knowledge and Experience Recognition

Your existing skills, knowledge and experience can help you get a recognised qualification or competency for some of the Unit of Competency, through an assessment process called Recognition of Prior Learning (RPL). You could be granted competency in full or part of a qualification, saving you valuable time and money, while enhancing your career prospects.

The process could suit you if you have:

- Paid or unpaid work experience
- Prior formal training
- Skills and knowledge gained on the job
- Counselling work experience

VSL Student Handbook RTO Code: 91275 Page 20 of 94

Address: Level 1, 22 Somerton Rd, Somerton VIC 3062 Phone: +61 3 8339 0030 E-mail: admin@ii.edu.au



- Short course and work-based learning
- Trade skills
- Other life experience



Credit Transfer

Credit transfer is one of several processes for establishing credit. It provides a means for an applicant to gain credit in an AQF qualification on the basis of completed components of another AQF qualification or other formal learning.

The credit transfer process involves:

- Mapping, comparing and evaluating the extent to which the learning outcome, discipline content and
 assessment requirements of the individual components of one qualification are equivalent to the learning
 outcomes, discipline content and assessment requirements of the individual components of another
 qualification, and
- Making a judgment about the credit to be assigned between the matched components of the two qualifications.

Delivery Mode and Location

Predominately delivery will be Face to Face (classroom based) at Level 1, 22 Somerton Road, Somerton, VIC 3062. However, due to COVID restrictions, some sessions might be delivered through online delivery.

Course Duration

- 12 months Full time
- 24 months Part time

Course Fees

Total course fees for BSB60420 Advanced Diploma of Leadership and Management is \$11,191.00. Breakdown of the total course fees is as following:

• Tuition fees: \$11,191.00

• Non-tuition fees: \$0.00

Total course fees: \$11,191.00

Payment options for Total course fees are as follows:

- Up-front payments for Total course fees
- Initial deposit with payment plan
- VET Student Loans (Only applicable to eligible applicant's, for more information please visit Department of Education, Skills and Employment website https://www.dese.gov.au/vet-student-loans/vet-information-students or contact Student Administration Team of Infinity Institute Australia.)

Career Pathways

Listed below are some examples of career pathways after successful completion of BSB60420 Advanced Diploma of Leadership and Management, but are not limited to:

- Managers
- Professionals
- Community and Personal Service Workers

Address: Level 1, 22 Somerton Rd, Somerton VIC 3062



Contact Details - Infinity Institute Australia

E-mail - <u>admin@ii.edu.au</u>
Phone No - +61 3 8339 0030

Address - Level 1, 22 Somerton Road, Somerton, VIC 3062

*Note: BSB60420 Advanced Diploma of Leadership and Management delivered by Infinity Institute Australia is a Nationally Recognised Training.





Unique Student Identifier (USI) and Commonwealth Higher Education Student Support Number (CHESSN)

The Unique Student Identifier (known as a USI) is a reference number made up of a combination of ten numbers and letters. Your USI is used to connect your student loan information to your personal details. You can log in and check or update your details at any time. Your USI is your individual education identifier for life. It also creates an online record of your training attainments in Australia.

USIs have been in place since 2015. Therefore, if you have studied a VET course in the last five years, including while at secondary school, you will already have an existing USI. If you have an existing USI you must continue to use that same USI on your eCAF application. You can locate your USI easily at <u>Get a USI</u>

Applying for a USI is fast and free, and you keep the same USI for life. You can apply for a USI in as little as five minutes at <u>Unique Student Identifier</u>.

Where do I provide my USI?

You might be asked to provide your USI when you apply to enrol in your course with your provider. Your provider should request your USI as part of the enrolment process.

Students seeking VET Student Loans will be required to provide their USI on their eCAF application. This will either be pre-populated in the eCAF application form by your provider, or alternatively you should enter your USI in the USI field before you submit your eCAF application form.

Why do I need a USI on my eCAF application form?

You will need to apply for a USI and include your USI on your eCAF application form if you wish to be eligible for a VET Student Loan.

If you are undertaking either nationally recognised training, or a higher education qualification, you need a USI in order to receive Commonwealth financial assistance, as well as to obtain your qualification or statement of attainment.

You must include your USI on your eCAF application form so that your provider and the Australian Government can provide you with information about any VET Student Loans or HELP loans you may have used. Your CHESSN (if allocated) is also used to help provide this information. The CHESSN will be gradually decommissioned from 2021 and replaced by the USI.

Your USI and your CHESSN (if allocated) are printed on your Commonwealth Assistance Notice (CAN).

The USI is being extended in 2021 to higher education. You should only have one USI – this will create a single government identifier for your entire tertiary education journey. You should only have one USI for the duration of your studies – even if you change providers, or decide to start a new course a few years after completing one, or change your name. You should always use the same USI for all of your studies.



Students will be provided with Infinity Institute VSL Student Handbook and VSL Information Booklet will also include the detailed explanations of the following, but are not limited to:

- 1. Course Overview and delivery timetable
- 2. Units of Competency details
- 3. Information on Census Dates
- 4. Information on Vet Student Loan Statement of Covered Fees, Vet Student Loan Fee Notice, Commonwealth Assistance Notice, Progressions and other
- 5. Infinity Institute's Website (<u>www.ii.edu.au</u>)
- 6. Course progression and attendance
- 7. Detailed explanation of VET Student Loans
- 8. Course Total Tuition Fees
- 9. Infinity Institute's Policies and Procedures
- 10. Infinity Institute's Withdrawal and Refund policy and procedure
- 11. Student responsibilities including update of contact details
- 12. Infinity Institute's responsibilities
- 13. Infinity Institute's Complaints and appeals policy and procedure
- 14. Assessment Procedures & Evidence Collection
- 15. Infinity Institute's Student Administration and Support Team



Student Responsibilities

Irrespective of the type of training, all Student have a responsibility to:

- Adhere to Infinity Institute Policies and Procedures, a copy of which is accessible on our website and at your face to face training or can be sent to you in soft copy on request.
- > Be responsible and accountable for their own behaviour and conduct,
- > Conduct themselves with regard to the rights and welfare of other learners and Infinity Institute Staff
- Treat Infinity Institute staff and other learners with mutual respect,
- Behave in a responsible manner and refrain from:
 - Harassing or bullying behaviour
 - Direct or indirect discrimination towards others based on their race, religion, sex, disability or any other personal attribute and characteristic,
 - Sexual harassment,
 - Derogatory comments and slander,
 - Smoking in training areas,
 - Using mobile phones during classes,
 - Swearing,
 - Disruptive behaviour during classes,
- ➤ Be punctual and attend all scheduled classes,
- Actively participate in scheduled classes and learning provisions set by IIA,
- Submit assessment tasks by the due date,
- Prepare appropriately for all assessment tasks, visits and training sessions,
- Progress steadily through their course in line with their training plan,
- Refrain from all forms of plagiarism, cheating and collusion,
- Communicate to relevant Infinity staff, as soon as possible, when an illness or personal problem affects academic progress and performance in an enrolled unit,
- Observe WHS procedures at all times and report any identified hazards
- Observe the right to privacy and confidentiality of fellow learners

For detailed information, please refer to Infinity Institute Code of Conduct & Practice.



Infinity Institute Responsibilities

Infinity Institute will maintain and deliver high quality training courses, complying with the VET Quality Framework accreditation requirements as a Registered Training Organisation.

Infinity Institute will maintain Workplace, Health and Safety, Equal Opportunities, Harassment, Bullying and Discrimination Policies and relevant legislation.

Infinity Institute will provide support services to assist learners overcome the barriers to achieving competency.

Infinity Institute shall:

- > Treat all learners equally
- Provide a learning environment free from harassment and bullying
- Respect learner's rights to privacy and confidentiality
- > Provide information to all learners on how to lodge complaint or appeal without being victimized
- Deliver training and assessment services which are consistent with the relevant Training Package and needs of industry
- > Seek students' feedback on the quality of our training and assessment services
- Communicate concise and timely information through letters, emails, telephone and website
- Advise students and all other stakeholders of any change to the training and assessment services including third party arrangements (including new and existing) and changes to ownership

For detailed information, please refer to Infinity Institute Code of Conduct & Practice.

Phone: +61 3 8339 0030 E-mail: admin@ii.edu.au



Assessments

All programs delivered by Infinity Institute are assessed under the "Principals of Competency Based Training" therefore assessment is based on you demonstrating your practical skills. Your assessor will assess your competence (ability) in each unit and then you will receive an assessment of "Competent" or "Not Yet Competent".

When being assessed in the required skills and knowledge, you will be required to perform to a standard that is required in the workplace.

Mutual Recognition

Infinity Institute will recognise Qualifications and/or Statements of Attainment issued by all other Registered Training Organisations.

Recognition of Prior Learning/Current Competency

If you consider you are already competent in specific Units of competency, you may be granted an exemption from undertaking the assessment, upon:

- Proof of subject-relevant formal training (Conducted by industry or educational institutions in Australia),
 or
- work experience, undertaken in the last 2 years; and
- Submission of evidences such as authenticated documents or samples of work demonstrating relevance and currency; and,
- Participation in an interview to ascertain current skills and knowledge. A cost may be associated to undertake this assessment interview.

If you make a claim for RPL a number of things could happen:

- > you may not be granted any exemptions
- > you may be granted exemptions for some Units
- > you may be granted exemptions for all Units

Plagiarism

Students should always submit evidence of competency that has been created by the student themselves. Plagiarism is not accepted by Infinity Institute and where plagiarism is detected Infinity Institute will assess the evidences as Not Yet Competent and further counsel the student on the requirements of student to submit their own evidences.

Overdue assignments

The due dates for the submission of assignments are mandatory and you are required to submit all the assignments to your assessor on or before the due date. Under extenuating circumstances, you may apply for an extension for the relevant assignment. It is your responsibility to apply for an extension prior to the assignment due date.



Determination of Not Yet Competent (NYC)

To be awarded a Nationally Recognised Qualification you must be deemed competent in all Units of Competency.

Whereby a learner is determined by the assessor to be Not Yet Competent (NYC) the learner may re-sit an assessment on a date provided by the college.

Whereby a learner is determined Not Yet Competent (NYC) and the learner does not apply or fails to present for a re-sit of the assessment, the determination of Not Yet Competent (NYC) shall stand as the final result.

Certificates and Statements of Attainment

For all Learners, on the successful completion of your training Infinity Institute will issue a Certificate/Diploma. This Qualification will record your name, date of completion, and the full name of the Qualification acquired. Your certification will include a transcript listing the units of competency achieved on the back. The Nationally Recognised Training logo (NRT) on your certificate indicates the course qualification is recognised throughout Australia. Therefore, your skills are transferable.

If you are unable to achieve the full qualification (or if only a part of the full qualification was offered at the time) you will be issued a Statement of Attainment. This will include results of the competencies achieved and can be added to at a later date if you wish.

In the event of a lost or stolen Certificate/Diploma requiring re-issue a no administration charge will apply.

Phone: +61 3 8339 0030 E-mail: admin@ii.edu.au





Enrolment Pack



Enrolment Process Policy and Procedure

Policy

Enrolment Process Policy and Procedure ensures that Infinity Institute Australia ("IIA") provides appropriate information prior to enrolment that allows all potential students to make an informed decision to study with IIA. It also ensures a consistent enrolment process will be implemented for all domestic students and that appropriate records will be maintained in all student files.

Enrolment Process Policy and Procedure describes the application and enrolment process to ensure that:

- students are academically suited to undertake a VET student loan approved course at IIA;
- the course chosen meets students learning needs and aspirations;
- the selection process is conducted in an ethical, fair and equitable manner;
- appropriate access and equity principles are considered in selection criteria; and
- the application and selection process is consistent and compliant with the relevant standards and legislation.

IIA will assess all potential student enrolment applications to ensure they meet the enrolment requirements of the course and to confirm their ability to complete the qualification.

This policy and procedure applies to the admission, selection and processing of applications received from prospective students that are, or would be, entitled to a VET student loan, who wish to study the VET student loan approved course at IIA. It provides a framework and requirements for IIA to demonstrate compliance in meeting the regulatory and legislative standards and requirements, including the VET Student Loans Act 2016 and VET Student Loans Rules 2016.

Procedure

The following procedure explains the process that is to be undertaken to enrol a student into a course of study. The process related to application, enrolment and entry of a student must be conducted with honesty and integrity.

Pre-Application Information

Students must be provided with the Student Handbook, VSL Information Booklet, Quick Guide for VSL Applications (attached) and all other materials referred to in the pre-training review interview (PTR) checklist (attached) prior to applying. Student must also be directed to all policies and procedures contained within the Infinity Institute Australia website.

Application

All students must complete an enrolment form (as attached) and undertake and conclude the PTR to confirm their enrolment. The enrolment form shall be lodged prior to any student being accepted as a student within IIA

Student eligibility for VET Student Loans

To be eligible for VSL, a student must meet the following requirements:

- be studying an **approved course**
 - o be studying with an **approved course provider**
 - o apply to the government using the **approved form** (eCAF) and include all relevant information
 - o confirm his or her engagement and continued progression to access the loan throughout the course, when required to do so by the department
 - o has a HELP balance that is more than \$0 (that is, has not used all their HELP loan limit)
- meet the citizenship and residency requirements:
 - o be an Australian citizen or
 - o a qualifying New Zealand citizen or
 - o a permanent humanitarian visa holder, who is usually resident in Australia. Permanent humanitarian visas are defined in the *Migration Regulations 1994*, Volume 1, Part 1, Regulation 1.03 Definitions. See: <u>Migration Regulations 1994</u> for the latest version of the Migration Regulations



- meet the academic suitability requirements:
- The student must have been assessed by IIA as academically suited to undertake the approved course on the basis of either:
 - o providing their Australian Year 12 Certificate¹ or
 - o providing their International Baccalaureate Diploma Programme (IB) diploma or
 - o providing evidence of successful completion of a qualification that has been delivered in English and:
 - was at level 4 or above in the Australian Qualifications Framework (that is Certificate IV or higher qualification), or at a level in a framework that preceded the AQF that is equivalent to level 4 or above in the AQF, or
 - has been assessed by a federal, state or territory government agency which assesses overseas qualifications (or an organisation contracted by such an agency to undertake such assessments) as equivalent or comparable to: a qualification at level 4 or above in the Australian Qualifications Framework, or a qualification at a level in a framework that preceded the AQF that is equivalent to level 4 or above in the AQF, or
 - o displaying competence at or above Exit Level 3 in the Australian Core Skills Framework in both reading and numeracy through an approved Language, Literacy and Numeracy test (and IIA reasonably believes the student displays that competence) and
 - o in addition, IIA must reasonably believe the student is academically suited to undertake the course; and the student must meet any other specified entry requirements for the course.
- meet the enrolment and loan application requirements:
 - o be enrolled with an approved course provider in an approved course
 - o be undertaking the course primarily at a campus in Australia

Note: A student is not entitled to a VET Student Loan if the course is undertaken by the student primarily at an overseas campus. Similarly, if the student intends on studying overseas via distance education for their entire course, they will not meet the requirement to undertake the course primarily at an Australian campus.

- o have applied for a VSL for the course in accordance with the loan application requirements. An application for a VSL must:
 - meet the Tax File Number (TFN) requirements that is, include the student's tax file number or a certificate from the Commissioner stating that the student has applied for a tax file number
 - include the student's Unique Student Identifier (USI)
 - have been submitted by 11:59 pm AEST on or before the Error! Reference source not found. for the f
 irst unit of the course for which the student is requesting a loan, and no less than 2 business days after
 enrolling
 - be in the form approved by the Secretary for the loan which is an electronic Commonwealth Assistance Form or also known as an eCAF
 - where a student is under 18 years old, must:
 - o have a parental consent form signed by a responsible parent of the student; (you must obtain the signed parental consent form prior to submitting enrolment information into the eCAF system), or
 - o have evidence of the assessment of receipt of youth allowance on the basis the student is independent within the meaning of Part 2.11 of the *Social Security Act 1991*; (you should receive from the student evidence of this assessment in the form of their Centrelink Income Statement noting this assessment).

A copy of the <u>VET Student Loans – Parental Consent Form</u> can be downloaded from <u>Information for VET Student Loans Approved Providers</u>.

VSL Student Handbook RTO Code: 91275 Page 32 of 94

Address: Level 1, 22 Somerton Rd, Somerton VIC 3062

¹ For students that have attained a *Victorian Certificate of Applied Learning (VCAL)* – only the VCAL Senior and VCAL Intermediate levels meet this requirement.



Pre-Training Review Interview (PTR)

The purpose of the PTR is to ensure that the student understands the responsibilities, obligations and rights related to applying for and obtaining a VET Student Loan. Part of the process of the PTR is for the assessor to explain to the student all items contained within the PTR checklist (as attached).

A key component being that the student is required to complete an LLN activity to assess their language, literacy and numeracy ability to complete the course (unless otherwise satisfied in accordance with Rule 80 of the VET Student Loans Rules 2016.)

The results of the LLN should be discussed with the prospective student during the PTR Interview. The results of assessing a student's competence in reading and numeracy under the procedure must be reported:

- a) to the student as soon as practicable after the assessment; and
- b) to the Secretary in the form, manner and by the time requested by the Secretary.

Unique Student Identifier

- It is a requirement that all learners must provide a Unique Student Identifier (USI) to Infinity Institute before a qualification or statement of attainment can be issued.
- Upon receipt of an enquiry from a prospective learner Infinity Institute will include in the information provided to the enquirer that they must provide a USI when they enrol, and will be directed to the USI website at https://www.usi.gov.au/students/get-a-usi
- Infinity Institute will include provision for the USI on the enrolment form
- Upon receipt of an enrolment form from a learner, Infinity Institute will confirm that the USI has been included on the enrolment form, and will verify that this USI is correct by using the Student Management System(Wisenet) to check the USI through the USI Registry System
- If the learner has not included the USI on the enrolment form, they will be contacted and advised that the USI is required before any qualification of statement of attainment can be issued
- If the USI check returns a "not valid" response, the learner will be contacted and the USI will be confirmed.

A further check will be made through the USI Registry System

- A notation will be made on the enrolment form that the USI has been confirmed as correct
- The confirmed USI will be included in the student details on the Student Management System(Wisenet)

Prior to the issuing of a Qualification or Statement of Attainment, the VET Manager will confirm that the student information on the Student Management System includes the learner's USI.

Records

- The signed enrolment form will be kept on the students file along with all other documents relevant to the student's enrolment such as the LLN Report (if applicable) and PTR Checklist (all collected documents).
- Any original documents submitted as part of the enrolment process will be copied and maintained on the student file. All originals will be returned to the student.

VSL Application Process

The attached 'Quick Guide – Applications' outlines the application process for VET Student Loans which a student is required to follow when applying for enrolment with Infinity Institute Australia on this basis.



Quick Guide - Eligibility

This quick guide provides information on the student eligibility requirements for VET Student Loans. This guide is published by the Department of Employment and Workplace Relations. Click here to access this guide.



Student eligibility requirements

Eligibility Tool

Prospective students can check their eligibility for a VET Student Loan using the <u>VET Student Loans Eligibility Tool</u> on the My Skills website.

Citizenship requirements

Students must be:

- an Australian citizen or
- a permanent humanitarian visa holder who is usually resident in Australia or
- a qualifying New Zealand citizen.

You must collect and verify information to confirm that students meet these criteria.

Evidence needed to confirm Australian citizenship

A current Australian passport is suitable evidence of Australian citizenship for VSL purposes. If a student does not have a current Australian passport the evidence needed to confirm their citizenship will differ depending on the situation. See section 4.7.1 Student Eligibility for Loans https://www.dewr.gov.au/vet-student-loans/resources/vet-student-loans-manual-providers for more information.

Permanent Humanitarian Visa Holders

You should contact the **Department of Home Affairs** to confirm if the visa class a student holds is a permanent humanitarian visa.

Qualifying New Zealand citizen

To be a qualifying New Zealand citizen a student must:



- hold a Special Category visa and
- have been usually resident in Australia for at least 10 years and •
- have been a dependent child when they were first usually resident in Australia and
- have been in Australia for periods totalling 8 years during the previous 10 years and
- have been in Australia for periods totalling 18 months during the previous 2 years.

Most New Zealand citizens who arrive in Australia are holders of a Special Category visa. This visa allows its holder to visit, live and work in Australia indefinitely.

Permanent residents or visa holders

Other permanent residents or visa holders are not eligible for VET Student Loans.

HELP balance

Students need a HELP balance of more than \$0 to be eligible for VET Student Loans. There are 2 websites to help students keep track of this.

MyHELPbalance

myHELPbalance keeps track of how much a student has borrowed under the various HELP loans from 2005 onwards. It shows loans received under HECS-HELP, OS-HELP, FEE-HELP, VET FEE-HELP and VET Student Loans but not SA-HELP. myHELPbalance does not show how much VET Student Loan debt (VETSL debt) has been repaid or what is owed to the Australian Taxation Office (ATO).

Students can use their Commonwealth Higher Education Student Support Number (CHESSN), their provider issued student identity number and other personal details to access myHELPbalance.

Students are able to see details of their HELP and VSL transactions when they access myHELPbalance including the name of the VSL (or Higher Education) approved course provider they studied with, the course code and unit code details, as well as the loan amounts and any loan fees they have incurred for each unit.

If the commencing student has not previously studied, and is a new student commencing tertiary study for the first time, the student's USI will need to have been reported and verified in TCSI before the student is able to log into myHELPbalance.gov.au.

You can log into myHELPbalance.gov.au using your PRODA credentials and look up a student's details. If the student has not previously drawn on their HELP loan limit you will see that they have the full HELP balance available. myHELPbalance will display the remaining available HELP balance where a student has already used some of their available HELP balance.

MyGov

myGov allows students to get more information about their HELP debt. Once a student's myGov account is linked to the ATO it shows:

- all current VETSL debts
- any indexation that has been applied to the debt
- any repayments made to show how much is still owed.

Enrolment in an approved course with an approved provider

A VET Student Loan is only available for approved courses at the diploma, advanced diploma, graduate certificate and graduate diploma level. Approved courses are listed in Schedule 1 of the VET Student Loans (Courses and Loan Caps) Determination 2016. Only students studying with an approved course provider are eligible for a VET Student Loan.

Study at a campus primarily in Australia

Students cannot access a VET Student Loan for courses taught primarily at an overseas campus.

Academic suitability

Students must be academically suitable to be eligible for a VET Student Loan. To show their academic suitability students



can provide either:

- a copy of their Year 12 Certificate², or
- their International Baccalaureate Diploma Programme (IB) diploma, or
- a copy of a certificate showing they have been awarded a qualification at level 4 or above in the Australian Qualifications Framework (AQF) (where the language of instruction was English) or at a level in a framework that preceded the AQF and is equivalent to level 4 or above in the AQF

If students cannot provide this evidence they must sit an approved Language, Literacy and Numeracy (LLN) test. They will be considered academically suitable if the test shows them to be competent at Exit Level 3 in the Australian Core Skills Framework in both reading and numeracy.

You must report the results of an LLN test to the student as soon as practicable after the test.

A list of approved LLN tests, as well as information on how to get a test approved, can be found on <u>Language</u>, <u>Literacy</u> and <u>Numeracy</u> (<u>LLN</u>) tool information.

Tax File Number (TFN)

To be eligible for a VET Student Loan a student must have a valid TFN.

If a student cannot remember their TFN they should call the Australian Taxation Office (ATO) on 13 28 61. You cannot access a student's TFN directly from the ATO.

A Certificate of Application for a TFN is required if students do not have a TFN. This certificate is available from the ATO after the student has applied for a TFN. If a Certificate of Application is used this must be attached to the student's electronic Commonwealth Assistance Form (eCAF).

Once the student receives their TFN from the ATO they will need to contact you immediately. You should re-open the eCAF to let the student update their TFN.

To do this put the eCAF into 'revision' status. The student will receive an email telling them they can update their eCAF. After entering their TFN the student resubmits the eCAF.

This process must be done within 6 weeks of the 'First census day of the loan application' in the eCAF., The student will not be able to use the loan to pay their fees without a TFN.

A student's TFN and personal information will be verified by the ATO once it is submitted. If the TFN cannot be verified by the unit's census day the student will be ineligible for a VET Student Loan.

Unique Student identifier (USI)

Students need a USI to be eligible for a VET Student Loan. Students can create a USI at Unique Student Identifier.

Required documentation

Students must provide appropriate evidence to show their eligibility for a VET Student Loan.

You must retain all required information and documentation collected in relation to a VET Student Loan application for 5 years. Providers must be able to produce this evidence and documentation for us on request.

Further information

For further information on student eligibility requirements, refer to the following resources:

- VET Student Loans Manual for Providers (see Chapter 4.7 Student administration)
- VET Student Loans Information Booklet

For the legislation governing citizenship and residency requirements, refer to section 11 of the <u>VET Student Loans Act</u> <u>2016</u>, and section 85 of the <u>VET Student Loan Rules 2016</u>.

VSL Student Handbook RTO Code: 91275 Page 36 of 94

² For students that have attained a *Victorian Certificate of Applied Learning (VCAL)* – only the VCAL Senior and VCAL Intermediate levels meet this requirement.





Pre-Training Review Interview Checklist (VET Student Loans)

| Applicant Name | |
|----------------|--|
| Staff Name | |
| Interview Date | |

VSL Student Handbook RTO Code: 91275 Page 37 of 94



Pre-Training Review Interview Checklist (VET Student Loans)

Instructions for staff and applicants – Staff and applicants are required to discuss each item contained within this checklist and the obligations or burdens that they create on the college or the student. As each item is discussed, please tick and ensure that each of you sign the completed form. A copy of this form MUST be retained on the student file.

| Items to discuss | Information Provided |
|---|-------------------------|
| Provide applicant with all of the following: | |
| a VSL Information Booklet for students; | |
| b IIA VSL Student Handbook; | |
| c eCAF Fact Sheet; | Ш |
| d Student Obligations Fact Sheet; | |
| e Student Progression Fact Sheet; | |
| f Student Fact Sheet: Tax File Number (TFN) Mismatch | |
| g IIA Withdrawal and Refund Policy and Procedure | |
| h IIA Privacy Policy | |
| i IIA Complaints and Appeals Policy and Procedure | |
| Note to Staff: Staff can provide the list of above documents in hardcopy or by email to an applicant. Where provided by email, that must be noted in this form and the student must reply to the email confirming that they have received the information. If not, confirmation is receiving, staff are required to follow up with the student. | |
| Language, Literacy and Numeracy (LLN) Test result (if an applicant was required to attend the LLN test) | |
| Provide a copy of the LLN report extracted from the LLN Robot system to the applicant. | П |
| Applicant's LLN test outcome: | _ |
| □ Pass | |
| □ Fail | |
| Note to Staff: If an applicant fails the LLN test, staff must advise the applicant that they are not eligible at this time to apply for a VET Student Loan. An applicant can re-sit the test after minimum of three (3) months from the day the original LLN test was conducted. | |
| In the meantime, an applicant should work on their Language, Literacy and Numeracy skills. | |
| All information required to be provided under the Standards for NVR Registered Training Organisations that relates to ensuring that each applicant is properly informed and protected. Information staff should provide the following information: | |
| • Total tuition fee of the applied course and the amount of tuition fee that is covered by the Vet Student Loans. | |



| Items to discuss | Information Provided |
|--|-------------------------|
| (Staff note: refer to the IIA VSL Student Handbook for the tuition fee amount) | |
| • Any non-tuition fee that the student needs to pay for their studies. | |
| (Staff note: refer to the IIA VSL Student Handbook for the tuition fee amount) | |
| Fees Structure for the applied course | |
| (Staff note: IIA courses have three terms each and course fee will be divided across three (3) terms, refer to the <i>Tuition Fees and Census Dates for VSL Students</i> for the relevant course) | |
| Course Structure and Delivery Timetable including holidays and weekly class timetable | |
| (Staff note: refer to the IIA VSL Student Handbook and Course Delivery Timetable for the information) | |
| How can a student withdraw from the course or the course term and how will the refund be paid for both fee-paying students and students' accessing VET Student Loans? | |
| (Staff note: refer to the IIA Withdrawal and Refund Policy and Procedure) | |
| • How can a student make complaints and what are their appeal rights? | |
| (Staff note: refer to the IIA Complaints and Appeals Policy and Procedure) | |
| • Academic and non-academic support available to students at IIA and identify support that an applicant may need during their studies at IIA. Does an applicant need additional support during their studies at IIA? | |
| □No | |
| ☐ Yes, provide details | |
| Confirm if an applicant is interested and considering accessing the VET Student Loans for the applied course? | |
| □ Yes | |
| ☐ No, discuss other payment options | |
| Note to staff: Must not pressure an applicant to apply for the VET Student Loans. | |
| A breach of this requirement will have serious repercussions including potentially termination of employment with IIA. | |
| Ask if an applicant is aware of their available HELP balance? | |
| ☐ Yes, provide the HELP balance amount | |
| □ No, inform applicant that they can check the HELP balance on the myhelpbalance website at www.myhelpbalance.gov.au and must advise the IIA of the HELP balance amount once known, | |
| Or | |
| ☐ An applicant authorises Infinity Institute Australia to check an applicants' HELP balance using the information provided by an applicant during enrolment. | |
| Confirm if an applicant is accessing the VET Student Loans for a course or part of the course at other VSL approved provider/s which has not been reported at the time of enrolment? | |



| Items to discuss | Information Provided |
|--|-------------------------|
| ☐ Yes, provide the amount of VET Student Loan for that course/s | |
| □ No | |
| □ Not sure | |
| Note to Staff: Staff must inform an applicant that a VET Student Loan will only cover the amount of course fee equal to their available HELP balance. If there is a shortfall, an applicant will have to pay the gap. The details of gap fee will be provided in the VET Student Loan Statement of Covered Fees. | |
| Information about the VET Student Loans, including that: | |
| a) it is a loan from the Commonwealth; and | |
| b) the loan will remain a personal debt until it is repaid to the Commonwealth; and | |
| c) the loan may, until the debt is repaid, reduce a student's take-home (after-tax) wage or salary and may reduce the student's borrowing capacity; and | |
| d) a student may wish to seek independent financial advice before applying for a loan. | |
| Note to Staff: Staff should also refer an applicant to the VSL information booklet for students and | |
| IIA VSL Student Handbook. | |
| Revise the criteria for being an eligible student for a VET Student Loan. Note to Staff: Staff should also refer an applicant to the VSL information booklet for students and IIA VSL Student Handbook. | |
| The application process for a VET Student Loan including information on eCAF. | |
| Note to Staff: Staff should also refer an applicant to the VSL information booklet for students and eCAF fact sheet. | Ц |
| An explanation that the student may be required during the course to communicate his or her agreement that the Secretary continue to use the VET Student Loan to pay tuition fees for the course (student progression and engagement requirements). | |
| The maximum amount of a VET Student Loan that may be available for the course and an explanation that the amount of the loan cannot be greater than the student's remaining HELP balance. | |
| The total VET Student Loan debt (VETSL debt) a student may incur if the student receives the maximum VET Student Loan (including specifying the loan fee if applicable to the student). Note to Staff: refer to the <i>Tuition Fees and Census Dates for VSL Students</i> for the relevant course. | |
| An explanation that the tuition fees for the applied course will be apportioned across a period of three (3) terms and that each term contains one census day. | |
| Note to Staff: Provide a copy of IIA Tuition Fees and Census Dates for VSL Students to an applicant for their applied course. | |
| Information about census days, including: | |
| a) the meaning of a census day (in accordance with the definition of <i>census day</i> in the Provider Manual) | |
| Note to Staff: Provide a copy of IIA Tuition Fees and Census Dates for VSL Students to an applicant for their applied course. | |
| b) that a student may cancel the student's enrolment in the course or the term using the IIA's Withdrawal and Refund Policy and Procedure available on IIA website www.ii.edu.au and | |



| Items to discuss | Information Provided |
|---|-------------------------|
| provide a copy of it to an applicant; and | |
| c) if a student withdraws on or before the census day for a course or term, the student | |
| will not incur a VETSL debt for the course or term and will receive a refund for any | |
| tuition fees already paid for the course or term. | |
| Advice that it is important for an enrolled student to notify the provider of any change of contact | ct 🔲 |
| details. | |
| Advice that the Department will contact the student to verify the student's enrolment in the | |
| course. | _ |
| Advise that an applicant may wish to receive independent advice in relation to any of the items contained in this checklist or otherwise. | e 📙 |
| Information on how to access the following websites: | |
| a) My Skills website <u>www.myskills.gov.au</u> | |
| b) myHELPbalance website <u>www.myhelpbalance.gov.au</u> | |
| c) Study Assist website <u>www.studyassist.gov.au</u> | |
| d) Study and Training Support Loans Repayment Calculator (ATO website) | |
| www.ato.gov.au | |
| e) Department of Education Skills and Employment website <u>www.dese.gov.au</u> | |
| f) Australian Skills Quality Authority (ASQA) <u>www.asqa.gov.au</u> | |



Applicant Declaration (please tick the statements that you agree with):

| \square I have received a copy of the following documents: | |
|---|---|
| VSL Information Booklet for students; IIA VSL Student Handbook; eCAF Fact Sheet; Student Obligations Fact Sheet; Student Progression Fact Sheet; and Student Fact Sheet: Tax File Number (TFN) IIA Withdrawal and Refund Policy and Progression IIA Privacy Policy IIA Complaints and Appeals Policy and Progression IIIA Complaints and Appeals Policy and Progression IIII III III III III III III III III | rocedure |
| course at Infinity Institute Australia. | nt Loans program for the applied VET Student Loan approved |
| ☐ No Staff at Infinity Institute Australia has forced me to Institute Australia. | to apply for the VET Student Loans program aInfinity |
| ☐ I understand all the information discussed with IIA st during this PTR interview. | taff regarding the course and the VET Student Loans program |
| \square I understand my obligations, responsibilities and right | ts under VET Student Loans program. |
| ☐ I have been advised that I may wish to receive indepthis checklist. | pendent advice in relation to any of the items contained in |
| Applicant Signature: | Date: |
| If you have attended the LLN test a declaration: | t IIA, please complete the following |
| \square I have been provided with my LLN test result. | |
| ☐ I have attended and completed the LLN test in perso | n and under supervision of a staff at IIA campus. |
| \square I have not cheated in any form such as using internet | or any other resources to complete my LLN test. |
| \square I was not provided assistance to answer my LLN test | from any staff at IIA (or other person whosoever). |
| Applicant Signature: | Date: |



IIA Staff Declaration (please tick the statements that you agree with)

| declaratio The applicant (including as I have not pother LLN to the declaration) | ant has attended and completed the LLN test in person and under my supervision. In this not cheated in any form such as using internet or any other resources to answer the LLN test assistance from any other person). Provided assistance with an exception of clarifying questions, as required, to the applicant to answer |
|---|---|
| declaratio The applicant (including as I have not pother LLN to the declaration) | ant has attended and completed the LLN test in person and under my supervision. In this not cheated in any form such as using internet or any other resources to answer the LLN test assistance from any other person). Provided assistance with an exception of clarifying questions, as required, to the applicant to answer test. |
| declaratio ☐ The applican ☐ The applican (including as | ent has attended and completed the LLN test in person and under my supervision. Ent has not cheated in any form such as using internet or any other resources to answer the LLN test assistance from any other person). Drovided assistance with an exception of clarifying questions, as required, to the applicant to answer |
| declaratio The applican The applican (including as | ent has attended and completed the LLN test in person and under my supervision. ent has not cheated in any form such as using internet or any other resources to answer the LLN test assistance from any other person). |
| declaratio | ent has attended and completed the LLN test in person and under my supervision. |
| declaratio | ons |
| | |
| | |
| Staff Signa | ture: Date: |
| | ed that an applicant meets the academic suitability criteria in accordance with Rule 80 of the VET ans Rules 2016 for enrolling in the nominated course. |
| ☐ I am confide | lent that an applicant understood all the items discussed during this PTR interview. |
| ☐ I have not p | pressured the applicant in any way to apply for the VET Student Loan program for the applied course. |
| ● II ● II ● II □ I have expla | Student Progression Fact Sheet; and Student Fact Sheet: Tax File Number (TFN) Mismatch IA Withdrawal and Refund Policy and Procedure IA Privacy Policy IA Complaints and Appeals Policy and Procedure ained to the best of my capability, all the items listed above in the checklist to an applicant including tions, responsibilities and rights under the VET Student Loans program. |
| • 3 | Student Obligations Fact Sheet; |
| • S | A B Bact Sheet. |
| • II • e • S | VSL Information Booklet for students; IA VSL Student Handbook; eCAF Fact Sheet; |



Administration Manager Declaration and Approval

| Ш | Ι. | have | reviewec | l the app | lication a | nd con | ıtırm t | hat the | e appl | ication is | comp | lete. | |
|---|----|------|----------|-----------|------------|--------|---------|---------|--------|------------|------|-------|--|
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | | | | | |

- ☐ I have reviewed and assessed all documents provided by the applicant to assess their eligibility for the applied course and for access to a VET Student Loan for the course, including checking;
 - Citizenship and residency requirements
 - Academic suitability requirements
 - Tax File Number requirements
 - Unique Student Identifier requirements
 - Age Proof requirements
 - Domestic Student Enrolment Form
 - Sufficient HELP balance requirement
 - Applicant's VEVO outcome (where an applicant holds a permanent humanitarian visa)

Application Outcome

| Administration Manager Signature: | Date: |
|---|--|
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| ☐ Rejected, provide details | |
| a VET Student Loan for the approved course. | |
| ☐ Approved, I am satisfied that the applicant meets all eligibility require | ements to study the course and apply to access |

VSL Student Handbook RTO Code: 91275 Page 44 of 94



Domestic Student Enrolment Form

Instructions to applicants:

- Please complete all the relevant sections of this form and attach the evidence's required.
- Please submit this completed form and required evidence's either in person to Student Administration or via email at admin@ii.edu.au
- If you have any questions, please contact Infinity Institute Student Administration Team via phone call on +61 3 8339 0030 or via an email at admin@ii.edu.au

| 1. Student Deta | ails | | | | | | | | | |
|--|--|------------------|---------------|------------|------------|---------------------------------|--|--|--|--|
| Title | | | | | | | | | | |
| Student ID (if known) | | | | | | | | | | |
| Surname (Legal Fa | amily | Name) | | | | | | | | |
| First Name (Legal | Give | en Name) | | | | | | | | |
| Middle Name (Leg | gal M | iddle Name) | | | | | | | | |
| Date of Birth | | | | | | | | | | |
| Nationality | | | | | | | | | | |
| Gender | | | ☐ Male | ☐ Femal | e 🗆 Inde | eterminate/Intersex/Unspecified | | | | |
| 2. Contact Deta | ails | | 1 | | | | | | | |
| Email Address | | | | Email A | ddress 2 | | | | | |
| Mobile Phone | | | | Home F | hone | | | | | |
| 3. Home Addre | ess (N | Must NOT be | a PO Box) | | | | | | | |
| Number and Stree | et | | | | | | | | | |
| Suburb | | | | | | State | | | | |
| Postcode | | | | Country | | | | | | |
| 4. Postal Addre | ess (I | f different from | n Home A | ddress) | | | | | | |
| Number and Stree | et | | | | | | | | | |
| Suburb | | | | | State | | | | | |
| Postcode | | | | | Country | | | | | |
| 5. Course Choice | ce (P | lease tick the | Course you | u wish to | apply for) | | | | | |
| ☐ CHC51015 Di | plom | a of Counsellin | ıg (Approve | ed for VET | Student L | oan) | | | | |
| ☐ CHC52015 Di | plom | a of Communi | ty Services (| Approved | for VET S | Student Loan) | | | | |
| ☐ BSB50420 Dip | oloma | of Leadership | and Manag | ement (Ap | proved for | · VET Student Loan) | | | | |
| □ BSB60420 Adv | ance | d Diploma of L | eadership a | nd Manag | ement (App | proved for VET Student Loan) | | | | |
| Do you wish to ac | Do you wish to access VET Student Loan for the course you have chosen above? | | | | | | | | | |
| ☐ Yes ☐ No | | | | | | | | | | |
| If yes, We strongly encourage you to take your time in understanding you obligations under the VET Student Loans before making a decision to apply for it. | | | | | | | | | | |



For further information on VET Student Loan, please visit the Department of Education, Skills and Employment website https://www.dese.gov.au/vet-student-loans/vet-information-students and Infinity Institue's website www.ii.edu.au or contact Infinity Institute Australia student administration team by phone: 03 8339 0030 or email: https://www.dese.gov.au/vet-student-loans/vet-information-students and Infinity Institue's website www.ii.edu.au or contact Infinity Institute Australia student administration team by phone: 03 8339 0030 or email: admin@ii.edu.au.

| 6. Language and Cultural Divers | sity | | | | | | | | |
|--|----------------------|------------------|---------------------|-------------------------------|-------------------|---------------|----------------------|--------|---------------|
| Where were you born? | ☐ Australia | | ☐ Other (Specify) | | | | | | |
| Do you speak a language other than home? (If more than one language, indicate that is spoken most often) | □ No, English □ Only | | | ☐ Yes, other (Please specify) | | | | | |
| How well do you speak English? | | □ Ve: | ry well | | □ Well □ N | | □ Not well | | □ Not at all |
| How well do you read and write in E | Inglish? | □ Ve | ry well | | Well | | ot well | | □ Not at all |
| Are you of Aboriginal or Torres Strait Islander origin? (For persons of both Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander origin, mark both 'Yes' boxes.) | | | □ No | | ☐ Yes, Aboriginal | | ☐ Yes, T Islander | | Torres Strait |
| 7. Disability | | | | | | | • | | |
| Do you consider yourself to have a d | isability, in | npairme | ent or long | g-term | condition | , | ☐ Yes | | □ No |
| If Yes, please indicate the areas of di area.) | sability, im | pairme | nt or long | -term (| condition: | You m | ay indic | cate n | nore than one |
| ☐ Hearing/ Deaf | | ☐ Mental illness | | | | | | | |
| ☐ Physical | | | ☐ Acqu | aired b | rain impai | rment | | | |
| ☐ Intellectual | | | □ Vision | | | | | | |
| ☐ Learning | | | ☐ Medical condition | | | | | | |
| ☐ Other (Specify) | | | | | | | | | |
| 8. Schooling | | | | | | | | | |
| What is your highest COMPLETED | school lev | vel? (Tic | k ONE b | ox only | y) | | | | |
| ☐ Never attended School | ☐ Comp | oleted Y | ear 12 | | |] Com | oleted Y | Year 1 | 11 |
| ☐ Completed Year 10 ☐ Completed Year 9 or Equivalent ☐ Completed Year 8 or | | | | | | or Equivalent | | | |
| In which year did you complete your highest school level? | | | | | | | | | |
| Are you still attending secondary school? | | | ☐ Yes | | | | □N | Ю | |
| You will need to either: Provide a certified copy of your highest COMPLETED School level certificate. To know, who can certify a document, click here. OR Bring your original document to IIA. IIA staff member will sight the original document and will make a copy of the original document and confirm that they have sighted the original document. | | | | | | | | | |



| 9. Previous qualification achieved | | | | | | | |
|---|--|-----------------------|----------------|----------------|--|--|--|
| Have you SUCCESSFULLY completed any of the following qualifications listed below? | | | | | | | |
| If Yes, please enter one of these Prior Education following priority order to determine which is | | entifiers for all qu | ialifications, | use the | | | |
| | Australian | Australian equivalent | Intern | ational | | | |
| Bachelor's Degree or Higher Degree | | | | | | | |
| Advanced Diploma or Associate Degree | | | | | | | |
| Diploma (or Associate Diploma) | | | | | | | |
| Certificate IV (or Advanced Certificate/Techn | nician) | | | | | | |
| Certificate III (or Trade Certificate) | | | | | | | |
| Certificates II | | | | | | | |
| Certificates I | | | | | | | |
| Certificates other than above | | | | | | | |
| You will need to either: Provide a certified copy of your previous here. OR Bring your original document to IIA. of the original document and confirm | IIA staff member will sight the or | riginal document a | · | | | | |
| 10. Study reason | | . 1 | 2 / T 1 ON | III 1 | | | |
| Of the following categories, which BEST desonly) | scribes your main reason for unde | ertaking the course | e? (11ck ON | IE DOX | | | |
| □ 01 To get a job | ☐ 07 I wanted extra ski | lls for my job | | | | | |
| ☐ 02 To develop my existing business | ☐ 08 To get into anoth | er course of study | | | | | |
| ☐ 03 To start my own business | ☐ 12 For personal inter | est or self-develop | oment | | | | |
| ☐ 04 To try for a different career | ☐ 11 Other reasons | | | | | | |
| ☐ 05 To get a better job or promotion | ☐ 13 To get skills for co | ommunity/volunt | ary work | | | | |
| ☐ 06 It was a requirement of my job | | | | | | | |
| 11. Citizenship and Residency Details | | | | | | | |
| Country of Birth | Year arrived in Australia | (if not born here) | | | | | |
| Which of the following are you? | | | | | | | |
| | Permanent humanitarian visa I | Holder | | | | | |
| , , | Other (please specify) ew Zealand Citizens ONLY | | | | | | |
| | | | Vos | N ₀ | | | |
| (For Infinity Institute to assess if you are a qu following 5 questions . You must provide evi | | ease answer the | Yes | s No | | | |
| Do you hold a Special Category Visa? | | | | | | | |
| Have you been in Australia at least 10 years p | | | | | | | |
| Did you enter Australia as a minor with no sp | | | | | | | |
| Have you lived in Australia for at least 8 of the last 10 years? | | | | | | | |



| Have you lived in Australia for a total of 18 months o | f the last two years before your enrolment day? |
|---|---|
| 12. Employment | |
| Of the following categories, which BEST describes yo For casual, seasonal, contract and shift work, use the whether full time (35 hours or more per week) or part | current number of hours worked per week to determine |
| □ 01 Full-time employee | ☐ 05 Employed – unpaid worker in a family business |
| □ 02 Part-time employee | ☐ 06 Unemployed – seeking full-time work |
| □ 03 Self-employed – not employing others | ☐ 07 Unemployed – seeking part-time work |
| ☐ 04 Self-employed – employing others | ☐ 08 Not employed – not seeking employment |
| Which of the following classifications BEST describes | your current or most recent occupation? (Tick ONE box only) |
| ☐ 1. Managers | ☐ 6. Sales Workers |
| ☐ 2. Professionals | ☐ 7. Machinery Operators and Drivers |
| ☐ 3. Technicians and Trade Workers | ☐ 8. Labourers |
| ☐ 4. Community and Personal Service Workers | □ 9. Other |
| ☐ 5. Clerical and Administrative Workers | |
| Which of the following classifications BEST describes | the industry of your current or previous Employer? |
| ☐ A. Agriculture, Forestry and Fishing | |
| ☐ B. Mining | |
| ☐ C. Manufacturing | |
| ☐ D. Electricity, Gas, Water and Waste Services | |
| ☐ E. Construction | |
| ☐ F. Wholesale Trade | |
| ☐ G. Retail Trade | |
| ☐ H. Accommodation and Food Services | |
| ☐ I. Transport, Postal and Warehousing | |
| ☐ J. Information Media and telecommunications | |
| ☐ K. Financial and Insurance Services | |
| ☐ L. Rental, Hiring and real Estate Services | |
| ☐ M. Professional, Scientific and Technical Services | |
| ☐ N. Administrative and Support Services | |
| ☐ O. Public Administration and Safety | |
| ☐ P. Education and Training | |
| ☐ Q. Health Care and Social Assistance | |
| ☐ R. Arts and recreation Services | |
| ☐ S. Other Services | |

| 13. | Victorian | Student I | Numl | oer (| (VSN) | |
|-----|-----------|-----------|------|-------|-------|--|
|-----|-----------|-----------|------|-------|-------|--|



To be completed by all students aged up to 24 years: Since 2009 in schools and since 2011 for vocational education and training (VET) organisations and Adult Community Education providers, a Victorian Student Number (VSN) has been allocated upon enrolment to each individual student aged up to 24 years. Students must report their VSN on all subsequent enrolments at a Victorian school or training organisation. In particular, all students who are currently enrolled in either a VET provider or a Victorian school (including those already participating in a VET in schools program) should obtain their VSN from their current education or training organisation and report their VSN on this enrolment form. Students who are enrolling for the first time since the VSN was introduced will get a new VSN. Do you have a Victorian Student Number (VSN)? ☐ Yes (provide your VSN) □ No If no, have you attended any Victorian school since 2009 or done any training with a vocational education and training (VET) registered training organisation or an Adult and Community Education provider in Victoria since 2011? □ No - I have not attended a Victorian school since 2009 or a TAFE or other VET training provider since the beginning of 2011. ☐ Yes - I have attended a Victorian school since 2009. Most recent Victorian school attended: and/or ☐ Yes - I have participated in training at a TAFE or other training organisation since the beginning of 2011. List the most recent training organisations with which you have participated in training in Victoria since 2011 (List up to 3 training organisations)



14. Unique Student Identifier (USI) From 1 January 2015, you can be prevented from being issued with a nationally recognised VET qualification or statement of attainment when you complete your course if you do not have a Unique Student Identifier (USI). If you have not yet obtained a USI you should apply for it directly at http://www.usi.gov.au/create-your-USI/ on your computer or mobile device. Please note that if you would like to specify your gender as 'other' you will need to contact the USI Office for assistance. Do you have a USI? ☐ Yes (provide your USI here): □ No, but I would like Infinity Institute Australia Australia to apply for a USI on my behalf. If you would like Infinity Institute Australia to apply for a USI on your behalf, you must authorise us to do so and have read the privacy information at Australian Government https://www.usi.gov.au/documents/privacy-notice-when-rto-applies-their-behalf. You must also provide some additional information as noted at the end of this form so that we can apply for a USI on your behalf. _, authorise Infinity Institute Australia to apply, pursuant to I, (print your name) sub-section 9(2) of the Student Identifiers Act 2014, for a USI on my behalf. ☐ I have read and I consent to the collection, use and disclosure of my personal information (which may include sensitive information) pursuant to the information detailed at v-notice-when-rto-applies-their-behalf, and NCVER policies, VER's website at RTO Hub (ncver.edu.au) Date: ___/___ Student Signature Preferred contact method ☐ Phone ☐ Email ☐ Mail Town/ City of Birth: (please write the name of the Australian or overseas town or city where you were born) We also need to verify your identity to create your USI. Please provide details (and copies) for one of the forms of identity below. Please ensure that the name written in 'Student Details' section is exactly the same as written in the document you provide below. Australian Driver Licence State/Territory Licence Number **Medicare Card** Colour of your Medicare Card ☐ Green ☐ Yellow □ Blue Medicare Card Number Expiry Date Individual reference number (next to your name on Medicare card) Australian Birth Certificate State/Territory



| Passport | | | | | | |
|---|--------|--|------------------------------|---------------------|--------------------|--|
| Australian Passport | Num | ber | | | | |
| Non - Australian Pa Australian Visa) | sspor | t Number (with | | | Issuing Country | |
| Immicard | | | | | | |
| Immicard Number | | | | | | |
| Citizenship Certifi | cate | | | | | |
| Stock number | | | | Acquisition date | | |
| Certificate of Regi | strati | ion by Descent | | | | |
| Acquisition date | | | | | | |
| personal informatio | n who | ich we collect fro ter we have made | m individual the applicat | s solely for the pu | rpose of applyi | ustralia will securely destroy ng for a USI on their behalf ger needed for that purpose, |



15. Victorian Government's VET Student Enrolment Privacy Notice & Student Declaration

The Victorian Government, through the Department of Education and Training (the Department), develops, monitors and funds vocational education and training (VET) in Victoria. The Victorian Government is committed to ensuring that Victorians have access to appropriate and relevant VET services. Any personal information collected by the Department for VET purposes is protected in accordance with the Privacy and Data Protection Act 2014 (Vic) and the Health Records Act 2001 (Vic).

Collection of your data

Infinity Institute Australia is required to provide the Department with student and training activity data. This includes personal information collected in the [RTO] enrolment form and unique identifiers such as the Victorian Student Number (VSN) and the Commonwealth's Unique Student Identifier (USI).

Infinity Institute Australia provides data to the Department in accordance with the Victorian VET Student Statistical Collection Guidelines, available at: DET Website

http://www.education.vic.gov.au/training/providers/rto/Pages/datacollection.aspx

Use of your data

The Department uses student and training data, including personal information, for a range of VET purposes including administration, monitoring and planning, including interaction between the Department and Student where appropriate.

The data may also be subjected to data analytics, which seek to determine the likelihood of certain events occurring (such as program or subject completion), which may be relevant to the services provided to the student.

Disclosure of your data

As necessary and where lawful, the Department may disclose VET data, including personal information, to its contractors, other government agencies, professional bodies and/or other organisations for VET-related purposes. In particular, this includes disclosure of VET student and training data to the Commonwealth and the National Centre for Vocational Education Research (NCVER).

Legal and Regulatory

The Department's collection and handling of enrolment data and VSNs is authorised under the Education and Training Reform Act 2006 (Vic). The Department is also authorised to collect and handle USIs in accordance with the Student Identifiers Act 2014 (Cth) and the Student Identifiers Regulation 2014 (Cth).

Survey participation

You may be contacted to participate in a survey conducted by NCVER or a Department-endorsed project, audit or review relating to your training. This provides valuable feedback on the delivery of VET programs in Victoria. Please note you may opt out of the NCVER survey at the time of being contacted.

Consequences of not providing your information

Failure to provide your personal information may mean that it is not possible for you to enrol in VET and/or to obtain a Victorian Government VET subsidy.

Access, correction and complaints

You have the right to seek access to or correction of your own personal information. You may also complain if you believe your privacy has been breached.

For further information, please contact Infinity Institute Australia administration team in the first instance by phone +61 3 8339 0030 or e-mail admin@ii.edu.au

Further information

For further information about the way the Department collects and handles personal information, including access, correction and complaints, go to Victorian State Government Eduaction and Training Website: http://www.education.vic.gov.au/Pages/privacypolicy.aspx



| For further information about Unique Student Identifiers, including access, correction and complaints, go to Australian Government website at: http://www.usi.gov.au/Students/Pages/student-privacy.aspx |
|---|
| Student Declaration: |
| ☐ I acknowledge that I have read the Victorian Government's VET Student Enrolment Privacy Notice. |
| |
| Student Signature Date:/ |
| |
| Date:/ |
| Parent/Guardian Signature (Parental/guardian consent is required for all students under the age of 18.) |
| 16. Privacy Statement & Student Declaration |
| Under the <i>Data Provision Requirements 2012</i> , Infinity Institute Australia is required to collect personal information about you and to disclose that personal information to the National Centre for Vocational Education Research Ltd (NCVER). |
| Your personal information (including the personal information contained on this enrolment form), may be used or disclosed by Infinity Institute Australia for statistical, administrative, regulatory and research purposes. |
| Infinity Institute Australia may disclose your personal information for these purposes to: |
| Commonwealth and State or Territory government departments and authorised agencies; and NCVER. |
| Personal information that has been disclosed to NCVER may be used or disclosed by NCVER for the following purposes: |
| • populating authenticated VET transcripts; |
| facilitating statistics and research relating to education, including surveys and data linkage; pre-populating RTO student enrolment forms; |
| understanding how the VET market operates, for policy, workforce planning and consumer information; and administering VET, including program administration, regulation, monitoring and evaluation. |
| You may receive a student survey which may be administered by a government department or NCVER employee, agent or third party contractor or other authorised agencies. Please note you may opt out of the survey at the time of being contacted. |
| NCVER will collect, hold, use and disclose your personal information in accordance with the <i>Privacy Act 1988</i> (Cth), the National VET Data Policy and all NCVER policies and protocols (including those published on NCVER's website at www.ncver.edu.au . |
| For more information about NCVER's Privacy Policy go to https://www.ncver.edu.au/privacy |
| |
| |



| Student Declaration: |
|---|
| ☐ I declare that the information I have provided to the best of my knowledge is true and correct. |
| □ I understand that Infinity Institute Australia is required to submit data sourced from this enrolment form to the National Centre for Vocational Education Research Ltd (NCVER) as a regulatory reporting requirement. The information contained on my enrolment form may be used by Infinity Institute Australia or the following third parties for administrative, regulatory and/or research purposes: |
| School – if I am a secondary student undertaking VET, including a school-based apprenticeship or traineeship. |
| Employer – if I am enrolled in training paid by my employer. |
| Government departments and authorised agencies. |
| > NCVER. |
| Organisations conducting student surveys. |
| Researchers. |
| ☐ I may receive an NCVER student survey which may be administered by an NCVER employee, agent or third-party contractor. (Please note you may opt out of the survey at the time of being contacted.) |
| Date/ |
| Student Signature |



17. Terms and Conditions

1. Infinity Institute Australia is required to provide the Victorian Government (through the Department of Education and Training (DET)) with student and training activity data which may include information provided by the student in this enrolment form. Information is required to be provided in accordance with the Victorian VET Student Statistical Collection Guidelines, available at:http://www.education.vic.gov.au/training/providers/rto/Pages/datacollection.aspx

The DET may use the information provided to it for planning, administration, policy development, program evaluation, communication, resource allocation, reporting and/or research activities. For these and other lawful purposes, The DET may also disclose information to its consultants, advisers, other government agencies, professional bodies and/or other organisations.

- 2. Selection and enrolment at Infinity Institute Australia is carried out in an ethical and responsible manner. Individual interviews are conducted to ensure applicants meet the entry requirements, are well informed about our courses and provide the opportunity to identify any special requirements the applicant may have. All successful applicants must complete the orientation program to familiarise themselves with the college's services, facilities and procedures.
- 3. Infinity Institute Australia endeavours to create a positive learning environment and provide student support services which are free of coercion, unfair treatment and harassment of students. Students are encouraged to achieve their personal best through the provision of valid learning and assessment tools and methods that are most suited to their diverse needs. Infinity Institute Australia has a fair and open Complaints Policy to address student complaints and appeals, and ensures all outcomes are on record in writing.
- 4. All staff of Infinity Institute Australia abide by the principles of access and equity and ensures that they behave in a non-discriminatory manner. Equity issues are discussed and considered at a management level whilst updates and changes to equity legislation are communicated at manager's meetings.
 - Where a student has a concern regarding their treatment, the student should refer to the Infinity Institue's Complaints and Appeals policy and procedure.
- 5. Infinity Institute Australia gives the guarantee to provide the training and/or assessment once the student has commenced study in their chosen qualification unless other factors prevent this such as non-payment of fees, Infinity Institute Australia withdrawal or suspension of the student.
- 6. Refunds will be in accordance with the Infinity Institute Australia's Withdrawals and Refund Policy & Procedure.
- 7. A Statement of Attainment of the completed units will be issued upon request at any time during the course. A full qualification will be issued once all units have been satisfactorily completed and there are no outstanding debts to Infinity Institute Australia.
- 8. Infinity Institute Australia is committed to protecting an individual's right to privacy in accordance with *Privacy Act 2001*.
- 9. Infinity Institute Australia will provide training and assessment in relation to the course. Infinity Institute Australia is responsible for the quality of the training and assessment in compliance with the *Standards for RTOs 2015*, and for the issuance of the AQF certification documentation.
- 10. Infinity Institute Australia must, during the course of delivering the training monitor and record training progress of each student. Infinity Institute Australia will provide both academic and non-academic support to each student, if required.



| 11. In the event of any change in contact details, the student must notify Infinity Institute Australia as soon as practicable by completing Update Student Record form and providing this to student administration team. |
|---|
| 12. All students enrolled in and participating in programs or using the services of Infinity Institute Australia are expected to maintain appropriate standards of conduct at all times. Where behaviour is deemed to be improper or inappropriate, action may be taken as outlined in Infinity Institute's Code of Conduct & Practice. |
| 13. Where a student is applying for a VET Student Loan, that applicant confirms they have been provided with, read and understand all documents in relation to applying for a VSL Student Loan. Further, they acknowledge and accept the responsibilities, obligations and rights that are associated with the applicant and grant of a VET Student Loan. |
| □ I, (print your name), agree to all the Terms and Conditions set out above, and to all Infinity Institute's Policies and Procedures. |
| Infinity Institute Australia policies and procdeures are available on our website: www.ii.edu.au . For more information, please contact Infinity Institute Australia student administration team by phone +61 3 8339 0030 or e-mail at |
| Date:/ |
| Student Signature |
| |



| 18. Student Declaration |
|---|
| In signing this form I acknowledge and declare that: |
| \square I have read and understood and consent to the privacy statement and have completed all questions and details on the enrolment and eligibility forms. |
| ☐ I agree to be bound by Infinity Institute's Code of Conduct & Practice, regulations, policies and disciplinary procedures whilst I remain an enrolled student. |
| ☐ My participation in this course is subject to the right of Infinity Institute Australia to cancel or amalgamate courses or classes. I agree to abide by all rules and regulations of Infinity Institute Australia. I understand and have been provided with information by Infinity Institute Australia in relation to Credit Transfer and RPL. |
| \square I confirm that I have been informed about the training, assessment and support services to be provided, and about my rights and obligations as a student at Infinity Institute Australia. |
| ☐ I have also visited Infinity Institute Australia website to review Training and Assessment options available to me including but not limited to duration, location, mode of delivery and work placement (if any), fees, refunds, complaints, census dates and withdrawals. |
| ☐ I authorise Infinity Institute Australia or its agent, in the event of illness or accident during any Infinity Institute Australia organised activity, and where emergency contact next of kin cannot be contacted within reasonable time, to seek ambulance, medical or surgical treatment at my cost. |
| \square My academic results will be withheld until my debit is fully paid and any property belonging to Infinity Institute Australia has been returned. |
| \square I acknowledge that from time to time Infinity Institute Australia may send me information regarding course opportunities and other promotional offers and that I have the ability to opt out to receiving this material. |
| ☐ I confirm that I have been provided with, read and understood all documents in relation to applying for a VSL Student Loan. Further, I acknowledge and accept the responsibilities, obligations and rights that are associated with Date/ Student Signature |
| Student signature |



Policies and Procedure

Academic Progress and Student At-Risk Policy and Procedure

Purpose and Scope

This policy and procedure provide a framework that Infinity Institute Australia ("IIA") implements to manage the academic progression of students and how students at-risk of unsatisfactory progress are identified, managed, monitored and supported. The intention of this policy is to provide all students with the best opportunity to meet their study goals and aspirations.

This policy and its procedures apply to all domestic students at IIA and all academic and administrative staff associated with teaching and learning and administration of their courses.

Policy

The following principles form the basis of this policy:

| Early assessment | In the early stages of any unit or the course, IIA academic staff aims at |
|--------------------------|---|
| of progress | identifying students who are likely to have problems with their academic work. |
| | In the first instance, trainers /assessors are expected to contact students who are |
| | identified as having problems with their academic work to ascertain the nature |
| | of the problems they are experiencing and how they could be assisted to improve |
| | their performance. IIA will make available additional support to students, such |
| | as learning and counselling support, including arranging one on one extra |
| | support sessions with their trainers and assessors, as required. |
| Proactive Monitoring and | IIA will monitor and report on student's' progression at the end of each term. |
| Prevention and Review | Cohorts will be tracked in terms of gender, level of study, indigenous/non- |
| | indigenous, full time/part time enrolment, under 24/over 25, disability |
| | reported/no disability reported, first in family/not first in family, |
| | low/medium/high socioeconomic status in order to determine those groups |
| | likely to be at risk and to determine appropriate intervention strategies. |
| Academic empowerment | Students will have access to their academic record upon making a request so that |
| | they are empowered to make decisions about their academic progress. Students |
| | will have access to this policy so that they have a clear understanding of relevant |
| | requirements and procedures. |
| Clear expectations | IIA will make clear to during enrolment process and during their course of study |
| | of what is expected of them when completing assessments and what constitutes |
| | satisfactory progress. This will also be reinforced in the classes by the IIA |
| | trainers and assessors. |
| Compassionate support | IIA acknowledges that unsatisfactory progress can be very difficult for students. |
| | While scrupulously maintaining academic standards, IIA will ensure that |
| | students have no cost supports available to them. |
| Completion | IIA aims to have all students who enrol complete the full Course within their |
| | scheduled course duration. |
| Fair | Fair and consistent treatment should be provided to all students by the processes |
| | and procedures of this Policy and Procedure. IIA will notify relevant students of |
| | satisfactory performance in a timely manner. |

Phone: +61 3 8339 0030 E-mail: <u>admin@ii.edu.au</u>



| Recruitment | IIA will endeavour to ensure that each student recruited into a course will have | |
|--------------|--|--|
| | a realistic chance of completion. | |
| Transparency | Students will be able to access their own academic records and to be able to | |
| | access this Policy and Procedure. | |

Procedure

The following procedure explains the process that IIA will implement the Academic Progress and Student at Risk Policy and Procedure.

For all IIA Students, the following procedure applies:

Satisfactory Course Progress

A student's academic/course progress will be assessed using the results of their units studied for a term. At the end of each term, students deemed to have satisfactory course progress will have passed 50% or more of the units attempted in each term and not failed any unit of study more than once.

Unsatisfactory Course Progression

This arises when a student at risk:

- 1. Fails 50% or more of the Units attempted at the end of a term.
- 2. Fails the same Unit for a second time.
- Is unable to complete their course within the timeframe specified in the maximum time for enrolment. In such circumstances, the student will be referred to the VET Manager for counselling, further academic support, and assistance.
- 4. Fails to improve, despite the intervention and further supports provided by relevant IIA staff.
- 5. Fails to complete the Course on time.

If the intervention strategy does not lead to satisfactory progress in the course, further steps will be taken by the IIA.

Student at Risk Indicators

There are several risk indicators of students being unable to complete their course. They include:

- 1. Poor attendance in class or online: Students are expected to attend 100% of classes and however for the purposes of this policy poor attendance is defined as missing at least 2 classes in succession or 3 classes cumulatively without good reason. Where poor attendance occurs the trainer and assessor is required to contact the student to stress the importance of regular attendance. Attendance should be recorded in the student management system (Wisenet), along with the unit results.
- 2. Extensions for submitting an assignment may indicate medical, mental health, personal issues beyond the control of the student, or the stress of undertaking the Unit or course. Where appropriate, trainers and assessors should advise the student of the study supports available. Extensions provided to the student should be recorded on the student database, along with the Unit results.
- 3. Deferral of a Unit: This may indicate a risk of non-completion of the Course and may put at risk on-time completion. It should be recorded on the student database.
- 4. Special Consideration: Students who gained admission to a IIA course with special consideration on the basis of having a mental or physical condition or disability and regardless of socioeconomic, educational, religious or cultural backgrounds may require additional support. With the written consent of the student academic staff will be made aware of these students in order to enable them to provide interventions, such as closer monitoring



- of performance and additional one-on- one time with these students. The students admitted under special consideration who have been provided with additional academic support will be considered high probability for early intervention.
- 5. Academic misconduct. This may be an indicator that a student is having difficulties in achieving the required academic standards of the Course. If academic misconduct is proven, this information should be included in the student database.
- 6. Failing a Unit: IIA staff in particular trainer and assessor should offer support the student in terms of showing them where they need to improve their performance if they are to re-submit the unit again.

Academic staff will be trained to detect students displaying any of these student risk indicators, and how to deal with them appropriately. Over time, IIA will gain large volumes of data on students and their performance. It will use this data to predict students who may become at risk of being unable to complete their Course.

Notifying At-Risk Students

Once students are identified as at-risk, the VET Manager will be responsible for writing to the student advising them that they are at risk of unsatisfactory progress within five (5) business days of so being identified. The VET Manager along with the trainer will organize an intervention meeting with the student and provide the required support (within their work boundaries) to help the student to progress in their course.

Completion Time

Students are required to complete courses within an appointed timeframe. All students will be monitored to ensure that they are on track to complete their courses within the required timeframe, and students at risk of not completing their course within the appointed timeframe will be referred to the VET Manager or other IIA staff for further counselling, support, and assistance.

Engagement (VET Student Loans)

Students accessing VET Student Loans for their enrolled course are required by the Department of Employment and Workplace Relations to demonstrate their course progression at regular intervals by completing the VET Student Loans – Confirming enrolment and continued course engagement and participation form (Progression form):

- IIA will login in to eCAF to trigger the progression point each year during February, June and October and send to students.
- Students will receive an invitation email with login details to the eCAF system requesting that students indicate their study intent and complete a short survey.
- Students are required to indicate that they are continuing to be a genuine student only after at least four months
 have elapsed since their eCAF application was submitted, or they last indicated they are a genuine student.
 Students may be requested to complete this form three times in a calendar year during the length of the course
 in February, June and October.
- Students have two weeks to submit the progression form to confirm their continuity as a genuine student.
- If students do not complete the form and survey, students may not be able to continue accessing VET Student Loans to pay for the remainder of their course tuition fees.

VSL Student Handbook RTO Code: 91275 Page 60 of 94



Students are required to maintain communication with IIA and the Department of Employment and Workplace Relations for the duration of the course to verify their enrolment and continue using VET Student Loans to pay tuition fees.

It is important that for the duration of the course students notify IIA and the Department of Employment and Workplace Relations of any change of contact details, as it may impact on accessing VET Student Loans to pay for the remainder of their course tuition fees.

IIA will monitor student course progress to ensure course and assessment requirements are being met. The VET Manager will use the following methods to check for students' engagement and progression:

- Attendance Records on Student Management System (Wisenet)
- Trainer/Assessor emails and progress notes on Student Management System
- Assessment submission dates
- Unit Completion results recorded on Student Management System
- Extensions applied for submitting an assignment

IIA provides a range of support services to support students' welfare and wellbeing. For further information on support services, refer to IIA Student Support, Welfare and Wellbeing Policy & Procedure.

Complaints and Appeals

Despite the best efforts of IIA to provide quality services and outcomes to its students, complaints may occasionally arise that require formal resolution. Students should refer to the *Students Complaints and Appeals Policy and Procedure* on IIA website or email IIA at admin@ii.edu.au. IIA staff will make every attempt to resolve their complaint or appeal as soon as practicable.

Phone: +61 3 8339 0030 E-mail: admin@ii.edu.au



Code of Conduct & Practice

Purpose

The aim of this Code of Conduct & Practice is to ensure that Infinity Institute Australia ("IIA") advocates for learning, training and assessment practice that promote positive outcome for all who engage in its services.

This code is to guide the practices and conduct of all IIA staff and learners who work alongside one another for the sake of mutual benefit and the reaching of shared goals.

Rights and Responsibilities of Staff

IIA staff have a right to:

- Expect the co-operation of learners.
- Expect that they will be able to teach and assess in an orderly and co-operative environment.
- Expect the support of other staff in the administration of fulfilling their professional duties.
- Not be harassed, victimized, or discriminated against on any basis,
- Access the information IIA holds about them,
- Have their complaints dealt with fairly, promptly, confidentially and without retribution.
- Have access to supportive environment which is free from harassment, discrimination, and victimization,
- Work in a healthy and safe environment where the risks to personal health and safety are managed and minimized,

IIA staff have a responsibility to:

- Take care of learners under their supervision with the aim of ensuring their safety and welfare as reasonable practice,
- Implement training and assessment practices in line with IIA's policy, procedure as well as the requirements as stipulated within the Standards for Registered Training Organisations (SRTO) 2015,
- Respect confidential information relating to learners gained in the course of professional practice, unless the wellbeing of an individual or a legal imperative requires disclosure,
- Uphold the reputation and standing of the profession; act with honesty and integrity in all aspects of their work; and avoid direct conflict between their private interests and their professional work,
- Respect learners, colleagues and co-professionals; and interact with them in a way that respects individual differences and cultural or ethnic diversity,
- Maintain flexibility in their approach to all aspects of training and assessment in line with the legal requirements that guide Vocational Education and Training in Australia,
- Appreciate the unique and privileged relationships that exist between trainers and learners; and conduct these relationships in a way that is professional, respectful and appropriate,

VSL Student Handbook RTO Code: 91275 Page 62 of 94

Address: Level 1, 22 Somerton Rd, Somerton VIC 3062



- Provide complete and accurate information and authentic documents within all aspects of the job role,
- Not enter into any transaction or become engaged in any other situation, which may result in a conflict of interest with IIA,
- Be familiar with policies and procedures relevant to activities undertaken,
- Ensure professional development opportunities are identified and sought,
- Report to the VET Manager/CEO for any breaches of this Code of Conduct & Practice or any other unlawful activities of which he or she may become aware of.

Rights and Responsibilities of Learners

Learners have a right to:

- Be treated fairly and with respect by all learners and IIA staff,
- Not be harassed, victimized, or discriminated against on any basis,
- Learn in a supportive environment which is free from harassment, discrimination, and victimization,
- Learn in a healthy and safe environment where the risks to personal health and safety are managed and minimized,
- Have their personal details and records kept private and secure according to IIA's Privacy Policy.
- Access the information IIA holds about them,
- Have their complaints dealt with fairly, promptly, confidentially and without retribution.
- Make appeals about procedural and assessment decisions
- Receive training, assessment and support services that meet their individual needs,
- Be given clear and accurate information about their course, training and assessment arrangements and their progress,
- Access the support they need to effectively participate in their training program,
- Provide feedback to IIA on the services, training, assessment, and support services they receive.

Learners have a responsibility to:

- Be responsible and accountable for their own behaviour and conduct,
- Conduct themselves with regard to the rights and welfare of other learners and IIA Staff
- Treat IIA staff and other learners with mutual respect,
- Behave in a responsible manner and refrain from:
- Harassing or bullying behaviour

Address: Level 1, 22 Somerton Rd, Somerton VIC 3062



- Direct or indirect discrimination towards others based on their race, religion, sex, disability or any other personal attribute and characteristic,
- Sexual harassment,
- Derogatory comments and slander,
- Smoking in training areas,
- Using mobile phones during classes,
- Swearing,
- Disruptive behaviour during classes,
- Be punctual and attend all scheduled classes,
- Actively participate in scheduled classes and learning provisions set by IIA,
- Submit assessment tasks by the due date,
- Prepare appropriately for all assessment tasks, visits and training sessions,
- Progress steadily through their course in line with their training plan,
- Refrain from all forms of plagiarism, cheating and collusion,
- Communicate to relevant IIA staff, as soon as possible, when an illness or personal problem affects academic progress and performance in an enrolled unit,
- Observe WHS procedures at all times and report any identified hazards
- Observe the right to privacy and confidentiality of fellow learners

If any party breaches the expected rights and responsibilities as outlined in this Code of Conduct & Practice, IIA will be required to take disciplinary action to rectify and/or manage the behavior

- In all situations and circumstances, the breeching party will be given due time and opportunity to respond to any concerns about their conduct or failure to meet the expectations set upon them.
- Breeching parties have the right to make an appeal of any decision made under the IIA Complaints and Appeals Policy and Procedures.

Misconduct

Breaches of the Code of Conduct & Practice will be considered misconduct. The investigation of and potential disciplinary actions for misconduct will depend on the nature of the misconduct and who is alleged to have committed the misconduct.

Staff Misconduct

Allegations of staff misconduct will be dealt with under the terms of employment, engagement or letter of offer.

E-mail: admin@ii.edu.au



Staff misconduct may have industrial relations implications and will follow the appropriate industrial relations instrument.

Misconduct by Visitors

Allegations or breaches of the Code of Conduct & Practice by visitors will need to be reported to the CEO with relevant details of the allegations. The CEO will determine what, if any, investigation and/or disciplinary actions can be taken.

Student Misconduct

Allegations or breaches of the Code of Conduct & Practice by students will be investigated. Breaches of the Code of Conduct & Practice are considered misconduct and will be escalated to the CEO. Students found guilty of misconduct may be subject to disciplinary action that is appropriate, proportionate, fair and consistent with the principles of natural justice and IIA's policies and procedures. The following apply to allegations or breaches of the Code of Conduct & Practice by students:

Anyone can report an allegation of misconduct against a student by informing a IIA staff member.

- Minor misconduct is defined by the extent, seriousness or impact of the breach of the Code of Conduct &
 Practice where it is not substantial and where the student has not been previously counselled about the standard
 of conduct required. Minor misconduct will be dealt with through a process placing emphasis on resolving
 matters at the local level using a collaborative approach.
- Serious misconduct is defined as a misconduct that has caused significant impact and which, if substantiated, is likely to result in the imposition of a penalty under this Code of Conduct & Practice, and will be dealt with formally. Allegations or complaints of serious misconduct, including repeated breaches of the Code of Conduct & Practice, will be referred to the CEO for investigation, who may delegate responsibility for resolving the complaint to an appropriate IIA staff member depending on the nature of the complaint.
- In cases of criminal offences (for example violence, drug use, sexual assault or damage to property on IIA
 premises) the CEO (or senior most staff member available) will immediately refer the matter to the relevant
 authorities.

Phone: +61 3 8339 0030 E-mail: admin@ii.edu.au



Complaints and Appeals Policy & Procedure

Purpose and Scope

This policy provides details processes as to how Infinity Institute Australia ("IIA") deals with complaints, grievances and appeals made by prospective and current students. It outlines the resolution of complaints or appeals in compliance with the relevant legislative requirements and without reprisal to the complainant or appellant.

This document sets out the processes and procedures for prospective and current students to lodge a complaint and the steps that will be taken by IIA to deal with the complaint and achieve the best possible outcome for the student.

Infinity Institute Australia ("IIA") is committed to providing an effective, efficient, timely, fair and confidential academic and non-academic complaint handling procedure for all students.

Academic matters include those matters which relate to student progress, assessment, course content or awards in a course of study.

Non-academic matters include those matters which do not relate to student progress, assessment, course content or awards in a course and include complaints in relation to personal information that the provider holds in relation to the Student. Non-academic complaints tend to arise from events occurring at a provider's premises or from non-academic decisions made by a provider.

Complaints and Appeals Policy & Procedure applies to all students of IIA, current and prospective, and other affiliations as well as the staff who will deal with complaints and appeals.

Definitions

For the purposes of this document the following applies:

Appeal means the escalation and review of an outcome of a Formal Complaint where a Complainant is not satisfied with the result.

Complainant means a student who raises a Complaint and seeks a resolution to that Complaint.

Complaint means a problem, concern or feeling of dissatisfaction that a student has with an act, omission, oversight or decision made by another student or any Infinity Institute/Australian College of Hypnotherapy staff or contractor (Respondent) where the student seeks a resolution. A Complaint could be of an academic or personal nature.

Formal Complaint means a Complaint made in writing which cannot be resolved through the Informal Complaint mechanism.

Informal Complaint mean a complaint that is dealt with directly between the complainant and any other person involved, with the intention of a resolution prior to a Formal Complaint being raised.

Respondent means the person or people that a Complaint is made against.

Phone: +61 3 8339 0030 E-mail: admin@ii.edu.au



Policy

Infinity Institute is committed to providing an effective, efficient, timely, fair and confidential academic and non-academic Complaint handling procedure for all students.

All Complaints are taken seriously and will be investigated fully and thoroughly. At the compulsion of such investigation, any and all appropriate action will be taken. Complainants should feel completely comfortable in lodging complaints without fear of any reprisal or untoward consequences of doing so.

The principles of natural justice and procedural fairness underpins how Infinity Institute deals with Complaints and Appeals. These principles are adopted at every stage in the process. Complaints will be investigated in an honest and ethical manner to ensure that the outcome is fair and just.

This Policy sets out the framework for the complaints handling system which includes:

- Providing an impartial and fair mechanism for students to make a Complaint
- Providing students accurate information on how to make a Compliant
- Setting timeframes for Complaint resolution
- Providing or allowing support for the student
- Allowing the student to access independent professional advice at their own cost
- Informing students of their options if they are not satisfied with the outcome
- Providing an Informal Complaint and Formal Complaint process for dealing with their concerns
- The student is informed if costs may be incurred for Appeals, and these costs are reasonable

Infinity Institute maintains a Complaints and Appeals Register. This Register will include details of all Formal Complaints lodged, details of outcomes and any other relevant information. All Complaints will be dealt with in a manner which ensures privacy, and where necessary confidentiality, of the parties involved.

Responsibility

The CEO along with the VET Manager is responsible for implementation of this Policy and Procedure and ensuring that all staff are fully trained in its operation and students and complainants are made aware of its availability.

Procedure

Informal Complaint

Infinity Institute may receive complaints from students, employers, staff and other stakeholders through a variety of means, for example: verbally (by phone or in person), written documentation or electronically (email).

Where possible all non-formal attempts shall be made to resolve the issue within the shortest timeframe. This may include advice, discussions, and general negotiation in relation to the issue.

For training and assessment-related issues, Infinity Institute recommends students to speak to their Trainer/Assessor in the first instance to resolve any concerns. If a satisfactory outcome cannot be

Address: Level 1, 22 Somerton Rd, Somerton VIC 3062



reached, the student can then approach the VET Manager.

If no resolution can be reached, the student/complainant has the option to lodge a formal complaint.

Formal Complaint

The following procedure is to be applied to a formal complaint:

- The Complaint and Appeals form must be fully completed
- The complainant and respondent will have the opportunity to present their case at each stage of the procedure
- The complainant and the respondent have the option of being accompanied/assisted by a third person (such as a family member, friend or counsellor) if they so desire
- The process will be free of discrimination or victimisation
- At all stages of the process, discussions relating to complaints, complaints and appeals will be recorded in writing. Reasons and a full explanation in writing for decisions and actions taken as part of this Procedure will be provided to the Complainant and/or the Respondent if requested
- Records of all Complaints will be kept for least five (5) years from the time Complainant ceases to be a student. These records will be kept strictly confidential

Stage One (Internal)

Formal Complaints must be submitted in writing to the VET Manager via the following methods by

By electronic copy via email: <u>admin@ii.edu.au</u>

By hardcopy posted or delivered to: 22 Somerton Road Somerton VIC 3062

A copy should also be sent to the responsible trainer who taught the course.

VET Manager will assess the Complaint and determine the outcome. The Complainant will be advised of the decision in writing within 5 business days of the decision being made. The Complainant will be advised of their right to access Stage Two of this Procedure if they are not satisfied with the outcome of Stage One.

If the Stage One decision requires an action to be performed, it should be implemented within ten (10) business days of Complainant being informed of the decision. If this is not possible, the reasons for a longer period must be given to the affected parties.

Stage Two

If the Complainant is not satisfied with the outcome of Stage One, the complaint and the initial outcome determined by the VET Manager will be referred to the CEO of Infinity Institute for Stage 2 -Appeal. In this instance, the student will be requested to lodge an Appeal in writing with the CEO of Infinity Institute. Complainants must lodge an Appeal in writing within twenty (20) business days of receiving the written decision for Stage One.

Appeals must be submitted in writing to the Chief Executive Officer via the following methods:

By electronic copy via email: mosfeka.jomaraty@ii.edu.au

By hardcopy posted or delivered to: 22 Somerton Road Somerton VIC 3062

Address: Level 1, 22 Somerton Rd, Somerton VIC 3062 Phone: +61 3 8339 0030 E-mail: admin@ii.edu.au



The CEO will conduct all necessary consultations with the Complainant and other relevant persons (VET Manager/trainer/ assessor and/or other staff involved) and once in receipt of their recommendation will decide the outcome of the Appeal. The Complainant will then be advised in writing of the outcome of their Appeal, including the reasons for the decision, within five (5) business days of the decision being made.

The Complainant will be advised of their right to progress to Stage Three of the Complaints and Appeals Procedure if they are not satisfied with the outcome.

If the Stage Two decision requires an action to be performed, it should be implemented within ten (10) business days of the Complainant being informed of the decision. If this is not possible, the reasons for a longer period must be given to the affected parties.

Stage Three (External)

If the Learner or Complainant is not satisfied with the outcome of Stage Two they must advise in writing that they are not satisfied with outcome of Stage Two and that they are escalating the matter to the Australian Skills Quality Authority (ASQA) or the VET Student Loans Ombudsman.

To lodge a complaint with ASQA, please see the following link:

https://www.asqa.gov.au/students/complaints

VET Student Loans

For VET Student Loans students who are dissatisfied with Infinity Institute's response having been through the internal two- stage complaints process, students can refer to the VET Student Loans Ombudsman (contact details below). There are no charges from Infinity Institute to a VET Student Loans complainant or appellant for Stage Three.

The VET Student Loans Ombudsman will act as the external dispute resolution body to conduct investigations and make recommendations in relation to VET loan assistance (i.e., VET Student Loans and VET FEE HELP).

Contact details

VET Student Loans Ombudsman (Commonwealth Ombudsman VET Student Loans)

Tel: 1300 362 072

Web: https://vet.ombudsman.gov.au/

Phone: +61 3 8339 0030 E-mail: admin@ii.edu.au



Enrolment Process Policy and Procedure

1. Policy

This Policy and Procedure ensures that The Holistic Healing Company Pty Limited trading as Infinity Institute Australia (Infinity Institute) provides appropriate information prior to enrolment that allows all potential students to make an informed decision to study with Infinity Institute. It also ensures a consistent enrolment process will be implemented for all domestic students and that appropriate records will be maintained in all student files.

Infinity Institute will assess all potential student enrolment applications to ensure they meet the enrolment requirements of the course and to confirm their ability to complete the qualification.

2. Procedure

The following procedure explains the process that is to be undertaken to enrol a student into a course of study. The process related to application, enrolment and entry of a student must be conducted with honesty and integrity.

2.1 Pre-Application information:

Students must be provided with the Student Handbook, VSL Information Booklet, Quick Guide for VSL Applications (attached) and all other materials referred to in the pre-training review interview (PTR) checklist (attached) prior to applying. Student must also be directed to all policies and procedures contained within the Infinity Institute Australia website.

2.2 Application

All students must complete an enrolment form (as attached) and undertake and conclude the PTR to confirm their enrolment. The enrolment form shall be lodged prior to any student being accepted as a student within the college.

2.3 Academic Suitability

To meet the academic suitability, students must satisfy one of the following:

- (a) a Senior Secondary Certificate of Education that has been awarded to the student by an agency or authority of a State or Territory for the student's completion of year 12; or
- (aa) a copy of a diploma that has been awarded to the student for the student's completion of the International Baccalaureate Diploma Program; or
- (b) both:
 - (i) the student is assessed as displaying competence at or above Exit Level 3 in the Australian Core Skills Framework in both reading and numeracy using an assessment tool approved under section 82; and
 - (ii) the provider reasonably believes that the student displays that competence; or
- (c) both:
 - (i) a certificate (however described) that the student has been awarded a qualification, either:
 - A. at level 4 or above in the Australian Qualifications Framework or at a level in a framework that preceded the Australian Qualifications Framework that is equivalent to level 4 or above in the Australian Qualifications Framework; or
 - B. that has been assessed by a Federal, State or Territory government agency which assesses overseas qualifications (or an organisation contracted by such



an agency to undertake such assessments) as equivalent or comparable to a qualification referred to in sub-subparagraph (2)(c)(i)(A).

(ii) the course for the qualification was delivered in English.

2.4 Pre-Training Review Interview (PTR)

The purpose of the PTR is to ensure that the student understands the responsibilities, obligations and rights related to applying for and obtaining a VET Student Loan. Part of the process of the PTR is for the assessor to explain to the student all items contained within the PTR checklist (as attached).

A key component being that the student is required to complete an LLN activity to assess their language, literacy and numeracy ability to complete the course (unless otherwise satisfied in accordance with Rule 80 of the VET Student Loans Rules 2016.

The results of the LLN should be discussed with the prospective student during the PTR Interview. The results of assessing a student's competence in reading and numeracy under the procedure must be reported:

- (a) to the student as soon as practicable after the assessment; and
- (b) to the Secretary in the form, manner and by the time requested by the Secretary.

2.5 Unique Student Identifier

- It is a requirement that all learners must provide a Unique Student Identifier (USI) to Infinity Institute before a qualification or statement of attainment can be issued.
- Upon receipt of an enquiry from a prospective learner Infinity Institute will include in the information
 provided to the enquirer that they must provide a USI when they enrol, and will be directed to the USI
 website at www.usi.gov.au/create-yourUSI/Pages/default.aspx
- Infinity Institute will include provision for the USI on the enrolment form
- Upon receipt of an enrolment form from a learner, Infinity Institute will confirm that the USI has been
 included on the enrolment form, and will verify that this USI is correct by using the Student Management
 System to check the USI through the USI Registry System
- If the learner has not included the USI on the enrolment form, they will be contacted and advised that the USI is required before any qualification of statement of attainment can be issued
- If the USI check returns a "not valid" response, the learner will be contacted and the USI will be confirmed. A further check will be made through the USI Registry System
- A notation will be made on the enrolment form that the USI has been confirmed as correct
- The confirmed USI will be included in the student details on the Student Management System
- Prior to the issuing of a Qualification or Statement of Attainment, the RTO Manager will confirm that the student information on the Student Management System includes the learner's USI

2.6 Records

- The signed enrolment form will be kept on the students file along with all other documents relevant to the student's enrolment such as the LLN Report (if applicable) and PTR Checklist (all collected documents).
- Any original documents submitted as part of the enrolment process will be copied and maintained on the student file. All originals will be returned to the student.



2.7 VSL Application Process

The attached 'Quick Guide – Applications' outlines the application process for VET Student Loans which a student is required to follow when applying for enrolment with Infinity Institute Australia on this basis.



Fair Treatment and Equal Benefits and Opportunity Policy

OVERVIEW

The Holistic Healing Company Pty Limited trading as Infinity Institute Australia (Infinity Institute) supports the concept of equal opportunity and is committed to providing all staff, students and potential students with a working and learning environment which values diversity, respects differences and provides an environment that is safe, healthy, positive, supportive and free from all forms of harassment, bullying and discrimination.

DEFINITIONS

For the purposes of this document the following applies:

The Act refers to the Higher Education Support Act 2003 the Vet Student Loan Act 2016 and the Standards for Registered training Organisations (RTO'S) 2015

Student/s refers to all persons enrolled in a unit of study who are, or would be entitled to Vet Student Loans assistance and is a genuine student in line with the Vet Student Loans Rules 2016 and Vet Student Loans Act 2016

Potential Students refers to all persons seeking to enrol in a VET unit of study that meets the course requirements who would be entitled of accessing a Vet Student Loan in line with the Vet Student Loan Rules 2016 and Vet Student Loans act 2016

FAIR TREATMENT

Infinity Institute will treat all Students and Potential Students fairly.

STUDENT SELECTION

Infinity Institute has open, fair and transparent procedures, based on merit for making decisions about:

- a. the selection, from among Potential Students; and
- b. the treatment of Students.

Potential Students seeking to enrol in a VSL unit of study with Infinity Institute, regardless of their background, circumstances or eligibility for funding, will be assessed for entry to study through the same published entry requirements and through the same process.



Privacy Policy

Purpose and Scope

In delivering VET courses Infinity Institute Australia ("IIA") may collect information from students or prospective students, either electronically or in hard copy format, including personal information that identifies individuals. IIA may also record various communications between individuals and IIA. This policy supports IIA's commitment to protection of personal information. This policy defines how IIA respects the privacy of information it collects, stores, uses and provides access to information. It ensures how IIA will satisfy legal responsibilities in privacy protection as it applies to all its directors, staff, students and contractors.

Policy

IIA's directors, staff, students, contractors and other stakeholders are entitled to the protection of their privacy. IIA recognises its obligation regarding the collection, storage and use of personal information and will take necessary measures to ensure privacy is protected. All personal information is collected for the operations of IIA. Personal information is collected directly from the individual, although in some cases, a third party such as a family member may also contact IIA and provide information on the individual's behalf. All students and staff have the right to access their personal information held by IIA.

This policy has been developed in alignment with the Australian Privacy Principle (APP) guidelines provided by the provided by the Office of the Australian Information Commissioner (https://www.oaic.gov.au/privacy/australian-privacy-principles-guidelines/). All staff members are made aware of the privacy obligations during induction and receive updates, reminders and training as required.

Open and transparent management of personal information

IIA will manage personal information in an open and transparent way. This includes having a clearly expressed and up to date Privacy Policy (this document) that is easily accessible, such as on the IIA website.

Collection, use or disclosure of personal information

IIA will collect, use or disclose personal information in accordance with the Privacy Act 1988. IIA will collect, use or disclose personal information where it is reasonably necessary for, or directly related to, IIA's functions or activities for educational, administration and regulatory Authority (ASQA) data reporting purposes.

IIA may typically collect and use information for handling enquiries, admissions, enrolments and administration, providing student services, conducting student assessments, conducting marketing campaigns, budgeting and forecasting, maintaining information technology facilities and transacting with other IIA related entities.

On rare occasions IIA, the Commonwealth including the TPS, or state or territory agencies, may be required by law to use or provide personal information to others for other purposes but will be done in in accordance with the Privacy Act 1988. In some cases, an individual's consent will be sought to use or provide personal information to others.

IIA will only adopt or assign a unique identifier (e.g. student or employee numbers) for an individual if it is necessary, authorised by law or with consent. Any transfer of sensitive information outside of IIA will be managed in accordance with the law. Personal information will be collected from the individual concerned, unless this is unreasonable or impracticable. IIA will only solicit and collect sensitive information if the individual consents to the sensitive information being collected. When IIA solicits and collects sensitive information all reasonable steps



will be taken to explain the reasons for the sensitive information to be collected; what will be done with the information; and the consequences (if any) if all or part of the information is not provided to IIA.

IIA are required by law (under the National Vocational Education and Training Regulator Act 2011 (Cth) (NVETR Act)) to disclose the personal information we collect about you to the National VET Data Collection kept by the National Centre for Vocational Education Research Ltd (NCVER). The NCVER is responsible for collecting, managing, analysing and communicating research and statistics about the Australian VET sector.

IIA are also authorised by law (under the NVETR Act) to disclose your personal information to the relevant state or territory training authority.

For more information about how the NCVER will handle your personal information please refer to the NCVER's Privacy Policy at www.ncver.edu.au/privacy.

Unique Student Identifier (USI)

The Unique Student Identifier requirements came in place on 1st January 2015 as a result of the passage of the Student Identifiers Act 2014. Students undertaking nationally recognised training delivered by a Registered Training Organisation (RTO) must have a Unique Student Identifier (USI). The USI creates a secure online record of nationally recognised training that the holder can access16. The USI is linked to the National Vocational Education and Training (VET) Data Collection.

The Student Identifiers Registrar collects personal information that is reasonably necessary for, or directly related to, its functions and activities pursuant to the Student Identifiers Act 2014. The Registrar will only use and disclose personal information for the purposes it was collected for and in accordance with the Privacy Act17

In addition to the above, the Student Identifiers Amendment (Enhanced Student Permissions) Act 2020 came into effect in May 2020 and amended the Student Identifiers Act 2014.

The amendments allow a student or person who has studied a VET course after 1st January 2015 to choose whether a licensing body, employment agency or potential employer views their authenticated VET transcript.

The student controls:

- Whether to share their transcript or not
- Who gets access
- Which of their VET achievements are displayed
- How long the transcript can be looked at

The student can remove this access at any time.

The amendments also introduce civil penalties to protect the integrity of the student identifier and authenticated VET transcript and to deter persons from doing the wrong thing. For more information on how Unique Student Identifier (USI), will handle your personal information please refer to the USI – Privacy Notice for students at https://www.usi.gov.au/documents/privacy-notice.

Quality and security of personal information

IIA will ensure that the personal information it collects, uses or discloses is accurate, up to date, complete and relevant, having regard to the purpose of the use or disclosure.

If an individual considers their personal information to be inaccurate, incorrect, incomplete, out of date or misleading, they can request that personal information to be amended. There is no charge for making a request to correct personal information.

IIA will take reasonable steps to protect personal information it holds from misuse, interference and loss, and from

VSL Student Handbook

Page 75 of 94



unauthorised access, modification or disclosure. IIA relies on individuals to provide accurate and current information in the first instance, and to notify IIA when circumstances or details change. Personal information may be stored in hard copy documents, as electronic data, or in IIA software, databases or systems. IIA protects personal information via various means including, but not limited to:

- Controlling physical access to IIA premises and hard copy documents and
- Controlling electronic access to IIA's website, software, databases or systems with security measures such as password protection.

Information access

Staff who needs the personal information to carry out their responsibilities will be able to gain access to that information. IIA will also provide individuals with the right to access or obtain a copy of the personal information that IIA holds about them at no charge. However, there may be a fee to make a copy of this information. Requests to access or obtain a copy of their personal information must be made in writing. Once a written request to obtain a copy of their personal information is received by IIA, the requesting individual will be advised how this will occur and if any applicable fees apply, within 10 working days of receiving the written request. Access to the personal information will be provided in a manner requested by the individual if it is reasonable to do so.

Written requests for access to, or to obtain a copy of, or correct personal information held by the IIA should be sent to: admin@ii.edu.au

Certain types of sensitive personal information may be subject to confidentiality standards beyond this Policy. In certain cases, the confidentiality requirements in this Policy will be overridden by legal or legislative obligations of disclosure.

Questions or complaints about Privacy at IIA

IIA takes all complaints seriously, including privacy-related complaints. IIA is committed to investigating and resolving privacy complaints in a timely, open, fair and transparent manner.

To raise any concerns or complaints in relation to privacy at IIA, please email admin@ii.edu.au



Records and Information Management Policy & Procedure

Policy

This policy is designed to ensure that Infinity Institute Australia ("IIA") effectively manages administrative, record management and reporting requirements in accordance with the requirements of the Standards for Registered Training Organisations 2015.

This Policy is written to comply with the Australian Privacy Principles.

This Policy and Procedure applies to administration, records management, and record retention of all records and details collected and maintained for training and assessment services delivered by IIA.

The Policy and Procedure also provide the processes ensuring IIA maintains compliance with all external reporting responsibilities (for example AVETMISS, Quality Indicators).

Correction – students have the right to seek that erroneous records are corrected in accordance with this policy and procedure.

Responsibility

Business and Financial

The Chief Executive Officer has the responsibility to ensure that all business and financial records are accurately maintained. This includes but is not limited to:

- Financial and annual reports
- Business plans
- Minutes of meetings relating to business operations and governance arrangements

Delivery and Training

The VET Manager has responsibility for ensuring that all records relating to the delivery of training and assessment services are maintained appropriately. This includes but is not limited to:

- All records of delivery and assessment arrangements
- Staff records
- All required records to ensure compliance against the Standards for Registered Training Organisations 2015

Student records

Student Administration has the responsibility for the storage, maintenance and archiving of all training, assessment and other student records. This includes but is not limited to:

- Student records database
- Records and evidence of training and assessment services
- All related administration paperwork and records relating to student enrolment, progress, and completion of any training and assessment services provided

IIA maintains a Student Record Management System that is able to collect AVETMISS data as required by the

Page 77 of 94

VSL Student Handbook



regulatory framework.

Retention of Student Training Resources and Assessment Instruments

IIA maintains master copies of all training resources and assessment instruments for all staff to access as required. These training resources and assessment instruments are maintained for a period of no less than one year from the date the materials cease to be used within IIA. Documents and records may be kept in archived format.

Retention of Student Assessments

In accordance with section 28(1) of the National Vocational Education and Training Regulator Act 2011 (Cth) and the General Direction issued thereunder on 22 June 2012 (and variously updated), retention of information relating to student assessment is kept for a period of six months from the date of the decision regarding the assessment.

Procedure

Documentation and records will be maintained by IIA depending on the format of the record in accordance with this procedure as outlined below.

Student Files

Currently Enrolled Students

All student records are maintained in paper or electronic form while a student is enrolled with IIA, including but is not limited to:

- Enrolment Form
- The assessment schedule for each unit included in the enrolment
- Pre-Training Review (including LLN testing, and any CT/RPL applications)
- Record of student assessments and results
- Financial and fee related documentation (copies of CAN and prescribed fee notices)

Completed/Cancelled Students

All student records are maintained in paper or electronic form while a student is enrolled with IIA, including but is not limited to:

- Enrolment Form
- The assessment schedule for each unit included in the enrolment
- Pre- Training Review (including LLN testing, and any CT/RPL applications)
- Record of student assessments and results
- Financial and fee related documentation (copies of CAN and prescribed fee notices)
- Assessment Outcome Record Sheets for each unit
- Copy of the Statement of Attainment or Qualification issued



Electronic records

Full electronic student records (including all records referred to under the completed/cancelled students) for all students will be retained for a period of thirty (30) years. This will be maintained in a format that is able to be retrieved for purposes of student, staff or other lawful access as required.

Enrolments and participation

All details of enrolment and ongoing participation in training and assessment are entered on the AVETMISS compliant Student Records Management System. This database shall also contain records of student progress that shall be maintained by Student Administration.

Student data shall be entered in a timely manner that reflects the student's current status (but no less that required by the regulatory reporting requirements). This includes identifying the training and assessment that has been undertaken as it occurs and maintaining an ability to provide up to date student records at any time.

Provision of student records to regulator

Transfer of records will be consistent with contractual and legal requirements and the requirements of the National VET Regulator (Australian Skills Quality Authority). This may include regular reporting of various data (i.e. Quality Indicators) relating to the training and assessment services provided by IIA.

Document disposal

Student Records

All student records are stored securely in line with the timeframes above. The manner of disposal after the retention period will be the responsibility of Student Administration. To ensure confidentiality, documents containing personal details or other sensitive information will be destroyed securely before disposal.

Other documentation

The document retention period of all other documents relating to the operations of IIA, if not contractually or legally required, shall be seven (7) years other than where in accordance with this Policy and Procedure. The manner of disposal after the retention period will be the responsibility of the Chief Executive /VET manager. To ensure confidentiality, documents containing personal details or other sensitive information will be destroyed before disposal.

Secure storage of electronic records

Student records and results are stored on IIA's Student Record Management System (Wisenet). All electronic records are kept on a secure server that is backed up daily.

Privacy and Student Access

Please refer to Privacy Policy for detailed information.

Except as required under the Standards for Registered Training Organisations 2015 or otherwise by law, information about a student will be kept confidential and not disclosed to a third party without the written consent of the student.

Access by a student to their personal records is available upon request to the Student Administration. A student may contact Student Administration in writing to discuss a suitable time to view their file. Access will only be granted once a student can confirm their identification. Student Access to the file will be granted only once written notification is received and Student Administration has validated the student's identification. Access shall be

Address: Level 1, 22 Somerton Rd, Somerton VIC 3062

Phone: +61 3 8339 0030 E-mail: <u>admin@ii.edu.au</u>



provided within two days of confirming the student's identification. Information that may be accessed includes progress, personal details and any relevant details of the student's enrolment that IIA has collected.

Monitoring and review of records

On an annual basis IIA will conduct an internal audit against the Standards for Registered Training Organisations 2015 and this will include reviewing all records to ensure compliance is being maintained. Student files will also undergo regular reviews to ensure information is included as required.

Correction

Students have the right to seek that erroneous records are corrected in accordance with this policy and procedure. Where a student forms the view that a record (whether it be personal information, student assessment or related records or financial and fee related records) is incorrect, the student may apply for a correction of that record by completing the attached form and providing it in writing to Student Administration.

Upon receipt of the application for correction, Student Administration will consider the request and make a decision regarding the application within 7 business days. Student Administration will advise the student in writing of the outcome along with reasons for the decision.

Where the student feels aggrieved with the outcome, the student may, in writing seek a review of the decision. This application for review must be presented to Student Administration, who will in turn provide the application and a copy of all materials pertaining to the original application and the reasons for refusal, to the Chief Executive Officer.

The Chief Executive Officer will review the materials and make a determination within 7 business days. The decision along with reasons for the decision will be provided to the student in writing. The decision of the Chief Executive Officer will be final and no further correspondence regarding the decision will be entered into.

Nothing in this procedure affects, removes or diminishes the rights of the student to seek any and all remedies that are otherwise available to the student at law.

Phone: +61 3 8339 0030 E-mail: admin@ii.edu.au



| Application to correct student record |
|--|
| Student Name: |
| Student ID: |
| What is your application in respect of? (please indicate) |
| ☐ Personal record |
| ☐ Academic record |
| ☐ Financial/fee record |
| ☐ Review of refusal decision |
| Please identify the nature of the record which you are applying to have corrected. Please provide all details to sufficiently identify the record in question (including course; trainer; unit; assessment number or type; fee or notice etc). Please clearly identify why the record is incorrect and the reason required for correction: |
| |
| Where appropriate or applicable, please identify what the corrected record should state: |
| Signed: |
| Date: |



Statement of Tuition Assurance for Exempt VET Student Loans (VSL) Providers

Introduction

- Tuition assurance protects students in the event a course provided by an approved VSL provider ceases to be
 provided after it starts but before it is completed. Affected students are offered a replacement course with
 another provider and where this is not possible, the students' FEE-HELP balance for the affected part of the
 course will be re-credited.
- 2. As an approved provider under the VET Student Loans Act 2016, The Holistic Healing Company Pty Limited trading as Infinity Institute Australia (Infinity Institute) ABN: 34 097 426 303 ACN: 097 426 303 must be a party to an approved tuition assurance arrangement or have an approved exemption in place.
- 3. It is intended that, from 1 January 2018, Infinity Institute will be exempted from the requirement to be a party to an approved tuition assurance arrangement. Instead, Infinity Institute is required to comply with interim arrangements which ensure similar tuition assurance protection is provided to students.
- 4. This statement sets out the interim arrangements for tuition assurance that will apply from 1 January 2018 and Infinity Institute's obligations from that date.
- 5. If any changes occur to the proposed arrangements outlined below, a revised statement will be provided on Infinity Institute's website and advised to all students that have enrolled in the intervening period.

What happens if Infinity Institute ceases to provide a course after it starts but before it is completed?

Information for affected students

- 6. Infinity Institute will notify affected students in writing that an approved course is no longer provided within 2 business days after The Infinity Institute ceases to provide the course after it starts but before it is completed.
- 7. As soon as practicable, Infinity Institute will also update its website to reflect that the course is no longer being delivered and to give students information about the tuition assurance arrangements.

Replacement courses

- 8. The Commonwealth Department of Education and Training (the Department) (or a consultant engaged by the Department) will work with affected students to identify a replacement course and arrange for students to be placed with replacement providers.
- 9. Replacement courses must meet the following requirements:
 - the course must lead to the same or comparable qualification as the original course;
 - the mode of delivery of the replacement course must be the same as or, with the student's consent, similar to the mode of delivery for the original course;
 - the location of the replacement course must be reasonable, having regard to the costs of, and the time required for, a student's travel; and



- the student will not incur additional fees that are unreasonable and will be able to attend the replacement course without unreasonable impacts on the student's prior commitments.
- 10. Affected students will be offered a replacement course and may seek a review about whether the course offered to them meets the requirements for replacement courses.
- 11. A student who accepts the replacement course offered will not be required to pay the replacement provider for the replacement components of the replacement course. However, the fees payable for the remainder of the replacement course may be different from the fees payable for the original course.
- 12. A student who accepts the replacement course offered will also receive course credits for parts of the original course successfully completed by the student, as evidenced by:
 - a copy of a statement of attainment or other Australian Qualifications Framework certification document issued by the course provider or an authorised issuing organisation in accordance with the Australian Qualifications Framework; or
 - a copy of an authenticated VET transcript issued by the Student Identifiers registrar.
- 13. Each affected student will have a period of six (6) months in which to accept the replacement course offer. The Department may extend that period in circumstances that justify an extension.
- 14. If an affected student enrols in a course that is not a replacement course, the student may be required to pay additional tuition fees, and might not receive the course credits the student would have received if the student had enrolled in a replacement course.

Re-crediting of students' FEE-HELP balances

15. Where there is no suitable replacement course for a student, Infinity Institute will re-credit the student's FEE-HELP balance for the affected parts of the original course. The amount re-credited will be equal to the amount of VET student loan used to pay tuition fees for the student for the course, or parts of the course.

Prepaid fees

- 16. For tuition fees paid up-front greater than \$1500, Infinity Institute has in place a Tuition assurance bank account
- 17. For tuition fees paid up-front below \$1500, students should be aware that there is no formal protection in place and students will be responsible to seek a refund for these fees directly from Infinity Institute if Infinity Institute fails to provide the agreed services. Infinity Institute has in place Refund Policy. If the provider is under external administration, this may require the student submitting a proof of debt with the external administrator.

Record keeping

18. It is suggested best practice for students to retain assessments, records of competencies or statements of attainment that they receive from their education provider.



Withdrawal and Refund Policy & Procedure

Infinity Institute Australia ("IIA") understands that in some circumstances, students may wish, or in rare cases, have no option to withdraw from a course of study. IIA intends to support students in fulfilling alleducational aspirations with the greatest level of support and ease. Stress can play a significant role in the life of a student and where IIA is able to reduce that stress, it will endeavour to do so. Ultimately however, the onus must be on the student to understand the rules and processes around both withdrawals and as a consequence, seeking a refund or re-credit of fees.

On occasion there will be a situation where, although at first instance withdrawal would seem to be the natural next step, alternative arrangements will be instituted. An example is where a course is cancelled if, for example, minimum numbers are not met. In such cases, students will be offered a place in the next available course rather than simply provided with an immediate withdrawal and refund. This is to ensure the academic interests of the student is protected by continuing the educational goals without unnecessary delay.

In usual circumstances, the policy of IIA Australia will be to consider, on the merits, the application for withdrawal and further, to determine the level of fees, if any, that are properly refundable (or subject for re- credit). Of course, IIA considers special circumstances in accordance with this policy and procedure document where applicable.

In any case, students are required to make a formal application to withdraw and/or request a refund using the Application to Withdraw Form and Refund Request. Grounds for a refund may, for example, include withdrawal from a course prior to commencement and special circumstances such as serious illness or other matters beyond the student's control which have a serious, adverse effect on the student's ability to complete the course.

Documentary evidence and a statutory declaration may be required in support of applications for withdrawal and/or refund due to special circumstances. Approval of an application for a refund is the decision of IIA Australia. Review and appeal procedures apply as set out in this document. Eligible VET Student Loans students may choose to defer a portion of their course fees and in such cases, the following conditions will apply:

- If a student chooses to withdraw from a course after a census date the relevant proportion of the coursefees will be applied inclusive of upfront fees and VSL fees
- Students are required to make a formal application to withdraw using the Application to Withdraw Form;
- no requirement to complete a Refund Request Form for fees deferred to VET Student Loans.

Withdrawal Procedure

Students who wish to withdraw from a VET Course or Unit of Study must provide in writing their Application to Withdraw Form and Refund Request to withdraw to the student services officer.

If the Application is made on or before the VSL census date:

- The student will be advised that they will not incur a VSL debt;
- Any tuition fees paid up-front, any gap fees paid via payment plan or a loan from the provider will be refunded; and
- IIA Australia will NOT charge:
 - o a withdrawal fee;

VSL Student Handbook RTO Code: 91275 Page 84 of 94



- o an administration fee;
- o a fine or penalty;
- o a fee determined to be a disincentive to withdrawing from a unit, part of a course or whole course.

IIA will ensure there is no penalty for withdrawing enrolment on or before census day where:

- IIA enrols a student in a course on the basis that some or all of the tuition fees for the courseare covered fees (covered by a VET student loan); and
- on or before a census day for the course the student requests in writing that the provider cancels the enrolment (a student may understand this to be an application to withdraw).

If a student requests to be withdrawn from a VET Course or Unit of Study after the census date:

- The student will incur a VSL debt for that VET Unit of Study; and
- No refund is applicable to any fees paid up-front (subject to the Special Circumstances provisions outlined below).

If IIA cancels a student's enrolment, it will:

- Inform the student concerned of a proposed cancellation;
- Provide the student with at least 28 days to initiate complaint procedures before the cancellation takes final effect;
- Provide for the cancellation to take effect only after the complaint procedures initiated by the student have been completed;
- Set out the circumstances in which fees for the course, or the part of the course concerned will, or will not be refunded.

If a student elects to enrol in part of an approved course where the student had earlier withdrawn from a part of the course, the student must request to re-enrol in writing to IIA Australia's student services officer.

In all circumstances, IIA will provide confirmation to the student of their withdrawal, including the date and time of the student's withdrawal, the unit of study, part of a course or whole course from which the student withdraw and the relevant census day upon completion of the decision regarding withdrawal and fee refund. Further, confirmation will also be provided as to whether the student has incurred a debt for the unit, part of the course or whole course.

Special Circumstances

IIA will only consider applications for remitting a VSL debt after the census date where there are special circumstances for doing so. To assist students with making their application the following definitions and guidelines are to be applied in determining special circumstances:

Special circumstances will allow IIA to re-credit a student's fees where it is satisfied that they prevented, or will prevent, the student from completing the requirements of the course or the part of the course. Some factors may include:



- medical;
- family;
- personal;
- employment; or
- course related.

In determining whether the student's circumstances meet the required special circumstances threshold, IIA will have regard to the following:

- whether the student could do enough of the following to meet course requirements:
 - o private study;
 - o attending training sessions and other activities;
 - o engaging online;
 - o complete any assessments, or demonstrate any competencies, required;
 - o complete any other requirements which would assist meeting the course requirements.

Special circumstances need to be:

- beyond a person's control; AND
- do not make their full impact until on or after the census date for the unit of study in question; AND
- make it impracticable for a person to complete the requirements for the unit of study.

For circumstances to be beyond a person's control, the situation should be that which a reasonable person would consider is not due to the person's action or inaction, either direct or indirect, and for which the person is not responsible.

IIA needs to be satisfied that a person's circumstances did not make their full impact on the person until on or after the census date for a unit of study if the person's circumstances occur:

- before the census date but worsen after that day; or
- before the census date, but the full effect of magnitude does not become apparent until on or after thatday;
- on or after the census date.

The situation must be unusual, uncommon or abnormal to be considered special circumstances. Students do not need to demonstrate they were unable to withdraw from the course prior to the census day.

IIA will consider whether the person's circumstances changed on or after the census day and when the full effect or magnitude of the circumstances became apparent, taking into account any additional circumstances, including continuation of a pre-existing condition that may have affected the person on or after the census day.



Payment Plan Arrangements and Refunds

Where a student has an approved payment plan arrangement and requests to withdraw, IIA will, for students supported by a VET Student Loan:

- PRE-census date, refund any monies paid through this payment plan arrangement, and
- Post-census date maintain the debt for any monies owed to IIA for the previous census period until repaid in full, at which time the debt will be reduced to a zero balance for the payment plan arrangement.

Re-crediting of a VSL Debt

A student may apply in writing to have their FEE-HELP balance re-credited under Part 6 Division 2 of the VET Student Loans Act 2016 pursuant to the following requirements:

- a student may apply in writing to the provider for the student's FEE-HELP balance to be re-credited under section 68 of the Act because of special circumstances;
- a student may apply to the Secretary for the student's FEE-HELP balance to be re-credited under section 71 of the Act because:
 - o the provider, or a person acting on the provider's behalf, engaged in unacceptable conduct in relation to the student's application for the VET student loan;
 - o the provider has failed to comply with the Act or an instrument under the Act and the failure has adversely affected the student;
- that special circumstances are circumstances that:
 - o are beyond the student's control;
 - o do not make their full impact on the student until on or after the census day for a course, or the part of a course;
 - o make it impracticable for the student to complete the requirements for the course, or the part of the course, during the student's enrolment in the course, or the part of the course;
- that applications for re-crediting under section 68 of the Act must be made within 12 months after the census day for the course, or the part of the course, concerned, or within that period as extended by the provider;
- that applications for re-crediting under section 71 of the Act must be made within 5 years after the census day for the course, or the part of the course, concerned, or within that period as extended by the Secretary.

The processes available to students in relation to reconsideration and review of decisions whether or not to re-credit FEE-HELP balances carry no charge for reconsideration or review of decisions, other than review by the Administrative Appeals Tribunal.

The Secretary may re-credit a student's FEE-HELP balance in relation to special circumstances if a course provider

- is unable to act or is being wound up or has been dissolved; or
- has failed to act and the Secretary is satisfied that the failure is unreasonable.

In requesting a remittance of the VSL debt, a student must provide relevant and appropriate evidence that they are



unable to continue their study in the unit due to special circumstances. Students can obtain further information about special circumstances from the student services officer.

Once a request to remit a person's VSL debt is approved, a student's VSL debt is removed for the relevant unit/s studied.

IIA will refund to the Commonwealth the amount of VSL paid to the IIA on behalf of the student, if the student's request is successful. IIA Australia will notify 'the Secretary' of variation if the student's request is successful.

IIA may refuse an application to withdraw from a unit or units of study after the Census Date if it considers the student's request is not based on special circumstances, f it believes there is not sufficient and relevant evidence or if it believes the student's request does not fall within the relevant timeframes for the application and processing of requests for remittance of VSL debt.

IIA will consider the student's application as soon as practicable. Applications will be considered within twenty (20) business days after submission of all final material/evidence. Applicants will be notified of the decision in writing, within a further fifteen (15) business days.

Students will not be victimised or discriminated against for:

- seeking review or reconsideration of a decision; or
- using the provider's processes or procedures about dealing with complaints; or
- making an application for re-crediting of the student's FEE-HELP balance under Part 6 of the Act.

Review of Decision

Where IIA decides NOT to re-credit a student's FEE-HELP balance, that decision is subject to review. This means an affected person may request the decision maker to review the decision and further apply to the AAT for a review of the reconsidered decision.

If a Student is not satisfied with the decision made by IIA, the Student may apply at no additional charge, within 28 days of the receipt of the original decision, for a review of the decision. The application for review must:

- be made within 28 days of receipt of the original decision;
- include the date of the original decision;
- state fully the reasons for applying for the review; and
- include any additional relevant evidence.

Applications should be made in writing to the CEO (IIA Australia, Level 1, 22 Somerton Rd, Somerton VIC 3062) as the designated Review Officer of any decisions relating to a request for re-crediting of a VSL balance.

Note: The Review Officer is senior to the designated student services officer responsible for the original decision and was not involved in making the original decision to be reviewed.



The Review Officer will:

- acknowledge receipt of the application for review of a decision in writing within ten (10) business days; and
- inform the Student that if the Review Officer has not advised them of a decision within 45 days of receipt of the application for review, it is taken that the Review Officer has confirmed the original decision.

The Review Officer will then:

- review the information from the original decision and then assess any new evidence provided by the Student;
- provide written notice to the Student of the decision, setting out the reasons for the decision; and
- inform the Student of their right to apply to the Administrative Appeals Tribunal if they disagree with the Review Decision, and timelines involved (see below).

In circumstances where an application for review is made outside the application period (that is, 28 days after the person was notified of the decision), and the provider has not extended this time, the applicant will be advised the application has been refused on the basis the person is out of time. In these circumstances, it is not necessary for IIA to address whether the special circumstances test has been satisfied.

Reconsideration by the Administrative Appeals Tribunal

At the time of the original decision, and at the time of the subsequent Review Decision, the student will be notified of their review rights and responsibilities. The student services officer will inform a student in writing of their right to appeal to the Administrative Appeals Tribunal (AAT) if they are not satisfied with the outcome and provide the contact details of the closest AAT office and the approximate costs of lodging an appeal.

The Application must be lodged at the AAT within 28 days of receiving written notice of the Review Decision. This time limitation can be extended in limited circumstances by order of the AAT.

AAT Details and Approximate Costs

AAT Registry GPO Box 9955 MELBOURNE VIC 3000

Telephone: 1300 366700

Full details of the application process and fees payable are available on the AAT Registry's website www.aat.gov.au

An application fee may have to be paid in the amount of \$816 and is subject to change. Applications cannot proceed until the fee has been paid or waived. Applications for fee waiver must be made to the AAT directly. Students are informed of the AAT website and payment arrangements as part of the written notification of the student's right for an external review and through publishing of this Policy & Procedure on IIA's website.

Upon receipt of notification from the Commonwealth Department of Education & Training (DET) of a lodged AAT appeal, IIA Australia commits to the provision of copies of all the documents that are relevant to the appeal within ten (10) business days.



Notification of Withdrawal from a VET Student Loans approved course.

Students who have been withdrawn from a VET Student Loans approved course will be provided a confirmation of withdrawal within 30 days of the withdrawal being entered into the system.

The letter will contain the following information:

- confirmation to the student of their withdrawal, including the date of the student's withdrawal, the unit of study, part of a course or whole course from which the student withdrew and the relevant census day;
 - confirmation as to whether the student has incurred a debt for the unit, part of the course or whole course (noting that no debt may be incurred if the student withdraws prior to the census day);
 - advice to the student regarding the special circumstances requirements (if applicable to the student's circumstances);
- information about the refund of upfront payments (if applicable to the student's circumstances)

Deferral, Suspension or Cancellation of Enrolment

IIA may defer student's commencement on the following grounds when a course is not offered.

IIA may suspend a student enrolment on the following instances:

- When a student is deemed to be in breach of the Student Code of Conduct & Practice; or
- When a student is deemed not making satisfactory course progress and fails to comply with the requirements of the Intervention Plan.

IIA Australia may cancel a student enrolment on the following instances:

- When a student demonstrates serious breach of the Student Code of Conduct & Practice;
- When a student is in breach of the Academic progress and student at-risk policy & procedure;
- When a student is continually absent from scheduled course hours;
- Non-payment of outstanding fees (if applicable)

In the event that a student enrols on the basis that some or all of the VET tuition fees will be covered by a VET student loan, and if the student does not submit an eCAF on or before the census date (or is not approved for a VET student loan) and does not voluntarily pay for the part of the course (eg. unit) upfront IIA may cancel or defer the student's enrolment for the course in whole or in part on the census day.

In cases where suspension or cancellation of the student's enrolment is initiated by the IIA, students will be notified and given 30 business days to access the IIA's complaints and appeals policy & procedure.

There will be no change in enrolment status and the student will not be reported to the department until the appeals process is completed. Upon cancellation of the course, student fees for the remaining proportion of the study period will be reimbursed in full.



Contacts and Additional Information²

Your provider

The student administration/enrolments office at your provider will be able to help you with:

- enrolments
- > tuition fees
- > census days
- leligibility criteria for VET Student Loans
- applying for a VET Student Loan
- > the correct withdrawal procedure
- > getting your FEE-HELP balance re-credited and your HELP debt removed under special circumstances
- complaint procedures for student complaints.

My Skills website www.myskills.gov.au

My Skills is the consumer directory for VET. Using My Skills you can compare courses and providers to choose the course that best suits your needs.

My Skills lists all the nationally registered training providers, their contact details, the publicly available courses they are approved to deliver and where they are being delivered. Students can use My Skills to search for VET Student Loans approved courses and approved course providers. Course price and course duration information can also be entered by training providers to assist students in assessing value for money.

My Skills features:

- course price information: all approved course providers are required to enter on My Skills the fees a student can expect to pay for a course accessed with VET Student Loans
- ➤ a VET Student Loans calculator to assist you to understand how your debt will grow after five and ten years if unpaid
- information collected from previous students about their satisfaction with training and their employment outcomes.

Study Assist website www.studyassist.gov.au

The website provides information about options for financing your tertiary study, including:

- ➤ HELP loans available in both the higher education and VET sectors
- > courses and providers that offer Australian Government assistance
- > student income support
- Australian Scholarships and Awards.



VET Student Loans Ombudsman

The VET Student Loans Ombudsman began operating on 1 July 2017. The Ombudsman manages and investigates complaints about the VET FEE-HELP scheme and VET Student Loans program. For more information, visit www.ombudsman.gov.au/vslo.

National Training Complaints Hotline

The National Training Complaints Hotline (13 38 73) is a joint Australian and state and territory government initiative which protects students and makes it easier for consumers, such as app rentices, students, employers and others, to lodge complaints if they are concerned about any aspect of the training system.

The National Training Complaints Hotline directs complaints to relevant authorities, connecting consumers to the appropriate organisation.

For more information, visit https://www.dewr.gov.au/national-training-complaints-hotline

Australian Taxation Office (ATO)

The ATO can help you with:

- > your HELP debt
- compulsory repayments
- > voluntary repayments
- > overseas repayments
- > the best time for you to repay your debt.

Contact details:

- visit www.ato.gov.au/getloaninfo,
- visit <u>www.ato.gov.au/onlineloanbalance</u> for information on viewing your loan account online,
- ➤ use <u>ATO online services</u> to view loan accounts and other information such as Payment Reference Number (PRN) and voluntary repayment options
- > call 13 28 61 for information about your HELP account and personal tax topics
- > call 13 36 77 TTY or 1300 555 727 TTY for hearing or speech impaired students
- write to Australian Taxation Office PO Box 1032, Albury NSW 2640.

Note: Do not send voluntary repayments to this address.



Department of Human Services (DHS)

DHS can help you with Youth Allowance, Pensioner Education Supplement, Austudy, and ABSTUDY and other forms of student income support assistance.

Contact details:

- visit www.humanservices.gov.au
- > call 13 24 90 for information on Youth Allowance and Austudy
- ➤ FreecallTM 1800 132 317 for information on ABSTUDY
- ➤ FreecallTM 1800 810 586 for TTY* enquiries
- > call 13 12 02 for information in languages other than English.

*TTY is only for people who are deaf or who have a hearing or speech impediment. A TTY phone is required to use this service.



Public Holidays

| Public Holidays 2023 (Victoria) | | | |
|---------------------------------|----------|-----------------------------------|--|
| Date | Day | Holiday | |
| 01 January 2023 | Sunday | New Year's Day | |
| 02 January 2023 | Monday | | |
| 26 January 2023 | Thursday | Australia Day | |
| 13 March 2023 | Monday | Labour Day | |
| 07 April 2023 | Friday | Good Friday | |
| 08 April 2023 | Saturday | Saturday before Easter Sunday | |
| 09 April 2023 | Sunday | Easter Sunday | |
| 10 April 2023 | Monday | Easter Monday | |
| 25 April 2023 | Tuesday | ANZAC Day | |
| 12 June 2023 | Monday | King's Birthday | |
| 29 September 2023 | Friday | Friday before the AFL Grand Final | |
| 07 November 2023 | Tuesday | Melbourne Cup | |
| 25 December 2023 | Monday | Christmas Day | |
| 26 December 2023 | Tuesday | Boxing Day | |